
 

 

Please ask for Democratic Services: Telephone 01775 764693  

e-mail: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 
 
 

 

Committee - PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
 
Date & Time - Tuesday, 24 January 2023 at 6.30 pm 
 

Venue - Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding 

 
 

Membership of the Performance Monitoring Panel: 
 
Councillors: B Alcock (Chairman), M D Booth (Vice-Chairman), C J T H Brewis, 
T A Carter, A C Cronin, H Drury, J L King, J D McLean, N H Pepper, P A Redgate, 
G P Scalese, A C Tennant, J Tyrrell, S C Walsh and D J Wilkinson 
 
Substitute members on the Performance Monitoring Panel may be appointed only 
from members who are not on the Cabinet.  Substitutions apply for individual 
meetings only.  
 
Quorum: 5 
 

 

 Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn their mobile telephones to 

silent mode 

 
 
 
Democratic Services 
Council Offices, Priory Road 
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE 
 
Date:   16 January 2023 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



A G E N D A 
 
1  Apologies for absence. 

  
 

2  Minutes -  
To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel held on 29 November 2022 (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
5 - 26) 

3  Actions -  
An update on actions which arose at the 29 November 2022 
Performance Monitoring Panel meeting, including tracking of previous 
outstanding actions (enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
27 - 30) 

4  Declaration of Interests. -  
Where a Councillor has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest the Councillor 
must declare the interest to the meeting and leave the room without 
participating in any discussion or making a statement on the item, 
except where a councillor is permitted to remain as a result of a grant of 
dispensation. 
 

 

5  Questions asked under Standing Order 6 
  

 

6  Tracking of Recommendations -  
To consider responses of the Cabinet to reports of the Panel. 
 

 

7  Items referred from the Policy Development Panel. 
  

 

8  Key Decision Plan -  
To note the current Key Decision Plan 
 

(Pages 
31 - 40) 

9  Sustainable Products Policy Briefing Note -  
To provide an update on plans for a framework to ensure the newly 
adopted Sustainable Products Policy is successfully monitored and 
measured across the Partnership (briefing note of the Climate Change 
and Environment Manager enclosed).  
 

(Pages 
41 - 42) 

10  Crime and Disorder Report -  
To provide members with an update on Community Safety Partnership 
work at a local and county level (report of the Assistant Director – 
Wellbeing and Community Leadership enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
43 - 84) 

11  Review of Implemented Planning Decisions -  
To update the Performance Monitoring Panel on the review of 
implemented planning decisions subsequent to the report being 
presented to the Planning Committee (report of the Head of Planning 
enclosed). 
 
The Chairman to present the report to the Panel. 
 

(Pages 
85 - 92) 

12  Economic Development and Inward Investment Update -  
To provide an update to the Performance Monitoring Panel on current 
work being undertaken to support the South Holland economy (report of 

(Pages 
93 - 
102) 

Page 2



the Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and Development enclosed). 
 
 

13  Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme -  
To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 
(report of the Interim Assistant Director – Governance enclosed). 
 

(Pages 
103 - 
112) 

14  Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent -  
 
 
NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by reason of special 

circumstances, which shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. 

 

 

 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



- 35 - 
 

Minutes of a meeting of the PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL held in the 
Council Chamber, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Tuesday, 29 November 
2022 at 6.30 pm. 
 

PRESENT 

  
B Alcock (Chairman) 

M D Booth (Vice-Chairman) 
 

 

C J T H Brewis 
T A Carter 
A C Cronin 
J L King 
 

J D McLean 
N H Pepper 
P A Redgate 
G P Scalese 
 

J Tyrrell 
S C Walsh 
D J Wilkinson 
 

  
 
In Attendance:  The Assistant Director – Strategic Growth and Development, the 
Assistant Director – Leisure and Culture, the Assistant Director - Regulatory, the 
Business Intelligence and Change Manager, the Group Manager - Organisational 
Development,  the Principal Planning Officer, the Planning Policy Officer, the 
Strategic and Operational Property Manager, the Estates Officer, the Communities 
Manager, the Head of Public Protection, the Head of ICT and Digital (PSPS), the 
Democratic Services Team Leader, the Democratic Services Officer, Councillor E 
Mossop (ELDC) and Councillor F Martin (ELDC).  
 
Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillor A C Tennant  
 
 
 Action 

By 
33 MINUTES   
  
 AGREED: 

 
That the minutes of the following meetings be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record:  
 

a) Performance Monitoring Panel meeting held on 14 
September 2022; and  

 
b) Performance Monitoring Panel meeting held on 19 

October 2022. 
 

  

 

   
34 ACTIONS   
  
 Consideration was given to the actions which arose at the 19 

October 2022 Performance Monitoring Panel meeting, and the 
tracking of previous outstanding actions. 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



- 36 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

 
Members considered the update and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members referred to action 28c, regarding communication 
of the Partnership to the workforce, and requested that 
more context/information come forward to the Panel. It was 
stated that there was a need for the workforce to feel more 
involved in the Partnership.  

o The Chairman responded that this issue had been 
raised as a concern during the Joint Scrutiny of the 
Partnership Task Group. A recommendation for this 
area to be improved had been made and updates 
would come forward in due course as part of that 
process. 

 

• Members referred to action 45 and made the following 
comments: 

o had the Chairman consented to the merging of the 
following Task Groups:   

▪ Public Open Spaces Task Group;  and  
▪ Effectiveness of Management Companies set 

up to undertake maintenance on residential 
estates throughout the district past, present 
and future Task Group.   

o in addition, it was noted that progression of the Task 
Groups had awaited discussions at Executive level 
and the Panel should be able to set its own agenda. 

▪ The Chairman responded that both Task 
Groups had been pending for a long period of 
time. Management Companies had become 
increasingly responsible for open spaces. It 
was difficult to review actions from a historic 
perspective and the merging of the two Task 
Groups ensured that both areas would be 
reviewed. Reassurance was given that both 
areas would be scrutinised in due course. 

 

• Members referred to the update regarding Public 
Conveniences and asked why public toilets were not open 
when advertised.   

o The Panel was advised that a response would be 
sought from the Environmental Services Team. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the actions and responses be noted.  

   

Page 6



- 37 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

35 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS.   
  
 There were none.   
   
36 QUESTIONS ASKED UNDER STANDING ORDER 6   
  
 There were none.   
   
37 TRACKING OF RECOMMENDATIONS   
  
 No reports had been presented to Cabinet from the last meeting 

however the following items on the current agenda had related to 
Task Group Recommendations: 
 

• Item 14: South Holland Centre Action Plan; and 

• Item 15: Sir Halley Stewart Task Group update.  
  

 

   
38 ITEMS REFERRED FROM THE POLICY DEVELOPMENT 

PANEL.  
 

  
 There were none.   
   
39 KEY DECISION PLAN   
  
 Consideration was given to the Key Decision Plan dated 21 

November 2022. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Key Decision Plan be noted.  

 

   
40 JOINT SCRUTINY OF THE SOUTH & EAST LINCOLNSHIRE 

COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP  
 

  
 Consideration was given to the report of Councillor Edward 

Mossop (ELDC), on behalf of the Joint Partnership Task Group, to 
review progress of opportunities identified in the approved 
business case for the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership. 
 
Councillor Edward Mossop (ELDC) introduced the report by 
thanking the three members of South Holland District Council who 
had contributed diligently to the process. 
 
The report was to be presented to scrutiny panels of each 
authority within the South and East Lincolnshire Councils 
Partnership (S&ELCP) for noting, before moving onto respective 

 

Page 7



- 38 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

Councils. 
 
The requirement for the review had been written into the 
Memorandum of Understanding when South Holland District 
Council had joined the partnership.  
 
Councillor Mossop stated that the review had been in depth, 
evidence had been supplied from 18 witnesses, and the following 
key points were highlighted: 

• witnesses had included members of the Senior 
Management Team who were positive about the 
partnership and the financial savings that had ensued; 

• some concerns were raised from other interviewees who 
had stated that action should be ‘impactful rather than 
doing too much too soon’; 

• feedback from PSPS representatives and the Employees 
Forum had stated that some areas had worked well whilst 
there were concerns that needed to be addressed urgently;  

• Councillors had engaged and completed questionnaires; 

• the need for urgent ICT alignment across the partnership 
had been identified; 

• improvements in communications were required and a 
subset of four recommendations had been included; and 

• the recommendations had aligned closely with those from 
the recent Peer Review report. 

 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members thanked Councillor Mossop for his Chairmanship 
of the Joint Scrutiny Task Group and his guidance 
throughout the process. 

 

• Members noted that ICT had been highlighted as a key 
point to be addressed.  

 

• Members were disappointed that some managers were not 
aware of the intended direction of the Partnership; senior 
management needed to ensure that all officers understood 
the mission and the difficulties of policy decisions.  

 
AGREED: 
 

a) That the report and associated recommendations be noted; 
and 

 
b) That the recommendations be fully considered at the next 

Council meeting.  

Page 8



- 39 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

   
41 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY   
  
 Consideration was given to the Workforce Development Strategy 

six-months after adoption.  
 
The Group Manager – Organisational Development delivered a 
presentation to the Panel which outlined the following points: 
 

• The six key themes of the strategy included:  
o attraction and retention of talented employees; 
o a flexible approach to delivery; 
o a healthy and active workforce; 
o the maximisation of staff engagement and shaping 

of organisational culture; 
o to be efficient and effective; and 
o the celebration of successes and rewarding of 

excellence.  
 
Each of the six themes comprised the following: 

o Why was it a priority? 
o What action would be taken? 
o What would success look like? 

 

• Governance, risk and supporting work programmes 
included: 

o Monthly Workforce Development Board; 
o Annual Action Plan; 
o Strategic Risk Register; 
o Scrutiny; 
o ICT Strategy Road Map; and 
o Performance Framework. 

 
The following key pieces had been delivered during the first six 
months: 
 
Attraction: 

• Resourcing and Assessment managers workshops had 
taken place which had ensured that managers were 
equipped to deal with the adapting nature and pace of the 
current recruitment market and ensured attraction and 
appointment of the right candidates;  

• local schools, colleges and universities had recommenced 
careers fairs and officers had attended three local events; 

• a draft Onboarding Platform had been introduced as part of 
the workforce induction.  The platform enabled the input of 
feedback from new recruits regarding their initial work 
period, induction and training.  The final draft had been 

 

Page 9



- 40 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

submitted to the Corporate Management Team for 
feedback, and would be launched to new appointments in 
due course; 

• the Council had a commitment to attain level 3 Leader 
Disability Confident Status and a mapping exercise had 
been completed across the Partnership which assessed 
current working practices; 

• a series of visual Career Maps had been showcased at 
recent career events which showed the variety of careers 
in Local Government.  Videos which highlighted roles and 
careers were being used in recruitment campaigns. 

 
Retention: 

• shared workforce values and behaviours had been 
launched to the workforce which had included workshops 
with the Corporate Management Team and service 
managers; 

• a single set of aligned progressive employee policies had 
been developed. The first three phases had been 
supported by SHDC and the remaining phases were 
pending for consideration by the Policy Development Panel 
on 13 December 2022 and Council in January 2023; 

• a single Employee Benefits Platform had been launched; 

• an Internal communications review had commenced; 

• a quarterly staff poll tracked workforce responses in the 
following 4 areas: 

o whether staff felt valued;  
o whether staff felt informed;  
o positive mental health recognition and support; and  
o developmental opportunities. 

  
Development: 

• a single annual training plan had been implemented which 
included mandatory, essential, and desirable training for 
services, alongside a number of corporate focussed 
training which included Leadership Training, Mental Health 
Support and Resilience training.  Training spend was 
monitored monthly and shared with the Workforce 
Development Board; 

• a Future Leaders Programme across the Partnership had 
been launched. Each delegate was assigned a mentor 
from the Corporate Management Team and the 
programme had consisted of leadership training elements. 
The Future Leaders Programme was positively recognised 
in the recent Peer Review;   

• managers undertook a Year Reflection one-to-one session 
with staff which focussed on wellbeing and workplace 
support awareness for staff; 

Page 10



- 41 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

• investigating officer training sessions had taken place; and 

• some of the Apprenticeship Levy Fund had been 
committed to supporting Higher Level Apprenticeships.  

 
Health and Wellbeing: 

• targeted sickness absence case management support had 
been introduced; 

• CareFirst Support Service had been launched;  

• further training of Mental Health First Aiders across the 
workforce had taken place; 

• the following manager coaching sessions had been 
delivered:  

o pillars of wellbeing; 
o practical advice around fit notes; 
o menopause support; and 
o guidance for managers and employees had been 

developed. 
 
Plans for the next 12 months included: 
 
Attraction 

● a resourcing plan would be developed which included the 
Traineeships, Apprenticeships and Graduate Programme;  

● the Onboarding Platform would be launched; 
● disability confident to achieve leader level status: extending 

beyond internal practices to influence practices across 
partnerships, supply chains and within communities; and 

● all initiatives supported by the Communications Plan to 
raise the profile of the Council as an employer of choice. 

 
Retention: 

● a programme to embed shared values and behaviours; 
● the delivery of outcomes from the internal Communications 

review; 
● the review of a total reward system; 
● further development of employee recognition schemes to 

share and recognise examples of innovation; outstanding 
service; leadership; and colleagues who exceed 
expectations for communities. 

 
Development: 

● implementation of a single Annual Review process across 
our workforce; 

● further development of the current 1-year Future Leaders 
Programme which would be extended to a 2-year 
programme; 

● delivery of an Organisational Wide Skills Gap Analysis – 
which was identified as a key recommendation from the 

Page 11



- 42 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

2022 Peer Review; and 
● a Matrix Management organisational structure style would 

be investigated which supported a work environment 
where talents and skills could be shared across 
departments and which reduced silo working. 

 
Health and Wellbeing: 

● the development and delivery of an overarching Health and 
Wellbeing plan which incorporated a whole self-approach;  

● support work which related to ‘aftermath of an incident’ and 
‘access to work mental health support’; and  

● attaining recognition through a Workplace Wellbeing 
Charter. 

 
Members considered the presentation and made the following 
comments: 

 

• Members noted that the plan was extensive and asked 
whether the strategy had been tested; and how many staff 
members had been involved.  

o The Group Manager – Organisational Development 
stated that: 

▪ the Workforce Development Strategy had 
been developed from the existing People 
Plan; 

▪ the strategy was progressive and responded 
to the current working environment which 
needed to be ambitious; and 

▪ the following staff members had worked on 
the strategy: the Group Manager – 
Organisational Development plus two staff 
from the wider Corporate Development team; 
in addition, PSPS provided HR support. The 
Workforce Development Strategy was 
included in the PSPS Service Level 
Agreement and in workplans.   

• Members requested that a table of information be provided 
which detailed the staff resources involved in the work on 
the strategy and the amount of time devoted to this area of 
work.  

 

• Members asked how the success of delivery of the plan 
would be monitored. 

o The Group Manager – Organisational Development 
stated: 

▪ that the team met regularly with recognised 
unions who presented feedback on behalf of 
their members;  

Page 12



- 43 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

▪ that feedback was received from staff forum 
members every six weeks; 

▪ that success was monitored through the 
Forward Trend Performance Indicator and 
since the implementation of the Workforce 
Development Strategy, baseline data for Q2 
had been obtained from employee survey 
responses; and 

▪ that as part of the joint consultative 
committee, HR provided the team with a 
quarterly workforce update which included 
details relating to staff turnover and sickness. 

 

• Members noted that the strategy was detailed and 
therefore expressed surprised that employees had felt 
disconnected and ill-informed. This underlined the need for 
improved internal communication. 

 

• Members asked for a definition of ‘Mental Health First 
Aider’ and asked how training was delivered and by whom. 

o The Group Manager – Organisational Development 
stated that the role of a Mental Health First Aider 
was to respond to mental health issues in the same 
way that First Aiders responded to physical health 
issues. A Mental Health First Aider was trained to 
identify the signs and symptoms of mental health 
distress and signpost employees to support 
mechanisms. The two-day training for Mental Health 
First Aiders was delivered by Mental Health First Aid 
England. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the six-month update on the Workforce Development 
Strategy be noted.  

   
42 Q2 PERFORMANCE REPORT 22-23   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 

Corporate to provide an update on how the Council was 
performing for the period 1 July 2022 to 30 September 2022. 
 
The report was introduced by the Business Intelligence and 
Change Manager who highlighted the following areas: 
 

• the layout had reverted to the previous format following 
feedback received at the 19 October 2022 Performance 
Monitoring Panel meeting; 

 

Page 13



- 44 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

• performance was now monitored using a business 
intelligence system which had been implemented across 
the Partnership; 

 
Key areas of performance were outlined in Appendix A and the 
following points were highlighted: 

• the time taken to process Housing Benefit and Council Tax 
Support claims (changes and new) was above the 
threshold target agreed between South Holland District 
Council and PSPS, and was within the national target set 
by the Department for Work and Pensions; 

• regarding Customer Contact performance: 
o this was still below the target set for calls answered 

however performance was on a positive trajectory 
and a breakdown of the data was provided within 
the report; 

o a 67% increase in demand when compared to the 
same period last year had resulted from over 
100,000 incoming calls regarding the Council Tax 
Rebate Scheme; and 

o essential training on the new telephone system had 
taken place during the period. 

• Freedom of information and complaint response times had 
improved slightly but remained below target. The report 
provided a breakdown of data by service areas. The 
department was under review so that contingencies could 
be employed across the Partnership when required. 

• Whilst Homelessness indicators remained under target, 
significant improvements had been made since the 
previous quarter and performance was on a positive 
trajectory. A breakdown of data was provided in the 
covering report and this area was to be monitored closely 
over the following months. The Assistance Director – 
Wellbeing and Community Leadership was to bring a 
report regarding interventions to Leaders of all three 
authorities within the S&ELCP on the 2 December 2022. 
The report could be shared with the Panel if this was 
considered useful; and 

• Housing Voids had improved since the previous quarter 
and performance had been within targets. 

 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members referred to the market stall occupancy rate and 
requested that the data be separated to detail occupancy 
of the different markets within the district, rather than as a 
total. 

Page 14



- 45 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

 

• Members referred to the conclusion at point 3 of the report 
which detailed the performance of 51 per cent of the 
Council’s metrics and asked for information regarding the 
remaining 49 per cent. 

o The Business Intelligence and Change Manager  
responded that the 49 per cent related to ‘data only’ 
Performance Indicators where targets were not set. 
A narrative would be included in future reports so 
this point would be clear.  

 

• Members noted the 67% increase in calls to the Contact 
Centre due to the Council Tax Rebate Scheme and 
questioned whether action had been taken to improve 
outward communications regarding the scheme to reduce 
demand on the service. Was the data being utilised to 
inform action? 

 

• Members referred to the Homelessness performance 
detailed at point 2.3 of the report and requested that the 4 
unpreventable cases and the 51 pending cases be 
reviewed to see if earlier engagement would lead to better 
outcomes. In depth triage at an early stage was called for. 
 

• Members noted the Freedom of Information performance 
at point 2.4 of the report and asked whether late responses 
had been attributable to multiple requests from single 
enquirers. A narrative which detailed the reasoning behind 
the data was requested for future reports. 

 

• Members noted that the number of reports which had not 
been made available to the Democratic Services team for 
agenda publication had doubled and asked for 
commentary to be included in future Performance reports. 

 
Regarding the format of the report, members stated that: 

• the report layout was welcomed; 

• a refinement of commentary was requested throughout; 
and contextual commentary was required where statistics 
alone had been stated; and 

• where percentages had been stated, the statistics behind 
the percentages also needed to be included. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the content of the Q2 2022/23 Performance Report be noted 
by the Performance Monitoring Panel.  

   

Page 15



- 46 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

43 REVIEW OF IMPLEMENTED PLANNING DECISIONS   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Head of Planning 

which reported on the Review of Implemented Planning Decisions 
and asked the Panel to consider the findings. 
 
The Principal Planning Officer introduced the report which 
included a background to the review of implemented planning 
decisions; an overview of the tour; and the main conclusions 
drawn from the tour.   
 
A summary of the comments from members during the tour were 
included at Appendix A.  Two recurring observations from the day 
were: 

• a lack of attention to design detail; and  

• clear concerns around the management and maintenance 
of public areas such as open space and incidental areas of 
landscaping. 

 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Officers were thanked for arranging and leading on the 
tour; 

• the tour was undertaken on a wet day and flooding on 
hardstanding areas was clearly apparent; in some cases, 
drains were sitting proud of the roads; 

• the experience of some developments deemed ‘over-
density’ on plans, felt open; 

• members noted that play areas had been identified as an 
area for improvement. Play areas needed to be adequate 
for the estate in which they were situated: in some cases 
play areas had not been installed and in others, 
improvements were required; it was noted that most of the 
concerns raised would be the responsibility of the 
management company of the development;  

o The Planning Officer had investigated the play area 
that was not delivered and a subsequent planning 
application had agreed that the play area would not 
be installed due to anti-sociable behaviour concerns 
raised by residents; 

• members were disappointed that meter boxes had not 
always been installed on the side of buildings; and 

• attenuation ponds and berms were not given due attention 
at development stage and were either unattractive or not 
functioning as expected. 

 
AGREED:  

 

Page 16



- 47 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

 
a) That the report on the Review of Implemented Planning 

Decisions be presented to the Planning Committee; and 
 

b) That the comments of the Panel be noted.  
   
44 MARKETING/RENOVATION OF INDUSTRIAL UNITS   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 

General Fund Assets to update the panel on the progress of 
renovation and marketing of industrial units. 
 
The Strategic Property Manager introduced the report by stating 
that a rent review had been implemented which had led to lease 
renewals and negotiations regarding rent increases and service 
charges. Outcomes and actions which arose from the review were 
outlined at point 2 of the report. 
 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members stated that the purpose of the original leases was 
for the provision of business starter units, which therefore 
offered employment opportunities, rather than being used 
as storage units. Had the terms of use changed over the 
years? 

o The Strategic Property Manager responded that:  
▪ the current focus had not been to lease units 

solely for the purpose of providing business 
starter units; 

▪ businesses were encouraged to grow 
however there was a lack of larger units for 
businesses to relocate to; 

▪ historically, the units had been under-rented;  
▪ until recently service charges had not been 

made which had led to maintenance issues – 
this had now been rectified; and 

▪ whilst the council could not influence a 
change with a current tenant, employment 
based firms were always prioritised against 
storage facilities.   

 

• Members were encouraged by the waiting lists for units 
across the district. 

 

• Members referred to point 5.4.1 of the report and asked for 
clarification of the legal implications and whether tenants 
were offered the same terms across the estate. 

 

Page 17



- 48 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

o The Strategic Property Manager responded that: 
▪ rolled-over leases applied in the cases 

mentioned at point 5.4.1 were subject to the 
Landlord and Tenant Act 1954;  

▪ the tenants had disputed the implementation 
of the new service charge and rent increase 
however negotiations were in place; and 

▪ the aim was to align lease agreements for 
consistent estate management. 

 

• Members referred to the waiting lists and asked whether 
information was shared with the Growth team to identify 
opportunities. 

o The Estates Manager responded that regular 
contact was made to ensure those on the waiting list 
were still actively looking for premises. Where the 
requirement for a shop unit was identified, these 
were referred to the Growth team. 

 

• Members referred to the arrears at points 2.6 to 2.8 of the 
report, and asked whether historical arrears were being 
paid or if legal action had taken place? 

o The Estates Officer confirmed that payment plans 
were either already in place or being sought. 

 

• Regarding the lack of general maintenance, as stated at 
point 2.10, members were surprised that the services of a 
general maintenance person had not been secured. 

o The Estates Officer concurred, however the lack of 
interest had subsequently been attributed to an 
uncompetitive rate of pay. 

 

• Members asked for assurance that the rent arrears 
process would be improved. 

o The Estates Officer was relatively new in post and, 
as a previous Lettings Manager, was accustomed to 
chasing arears. Regular contact was maintained 
with tenants and Credit Control to ensure that 
arrears were kept to a minimum.  

 

• Members referred to the current financial crisis and 
questioned whether increased rents were viable. 

o The Strategic Property Manager stated that: 
▪ the rent review was deemed fair and 

reasonable;  
▪ rents had not previously been regularly 

reviewed and were cheap in comparison with 
the market; 

Page 18



- 49 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

▪ each estate was visited regularly, and any 
issues dealt with swiftly and effectively. 

 
AGREED: 
 
That the Marketing/Renovation of Industrial Units report be noted 
by the Performance Monitoring Panel.  

   
45 SOUTH HOLLAND CENTRE ACTION PLAN   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 

Leisure and Culture to update members of the Performance 
Monitoring Panel on the South Holland Centre action plan. 
 
The Chairman introduced the item by stating that an agreement 
had been made with the Chairman of the Policy Development 
Panel to reconvene the joint Performance Monitoring Panel / 
Policy Development Panel South Holland Centre Task Group so 
that the delivery of the Task Group’s recommendations could be 
scrutinised.  
 
The Communities Manager introduced the report which outlined: 

• the re-opening strategy of the South Holland Centre;  

• updates to the South Holland Centre Task Group 
recommendations at Appendix A; and 

• the action plan of the Cabinet Subgroup at Appendix B. 
 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 
 

• Members welcomed the report, nonetheless an increased 
depth of information was required which would be 
scrutinised by the Task Group early in 2023.   

 

• Some members expressed disappointment that the action 
plan had been approved by Cabinet without scrutiny.  
Whilst members accepted that the industry was still in 
recovery, this had necessitated the immediate 
implementation of a business plan. The plan was deemed 
to be inadequate and the following key information had not 
been included: 
o clarity of the aims and objectives of the South Holland 

Centre as an asset; 
o an outline of what recovery looked like and how this 

would be monitored; 
o a plan of action should recovery of the South Holland 

Centre not progress as anticipated;  
o an incorporation of the whole building: the recovery 

 

Page 19



- 50 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

plan needed to apply to all aspects including the 
catering option and offices; and 

o accompanying financial information. 
 

• The Communities Manager responded that the full 
business plan would come forward for implementation in 
the following financial year due to the following reasons: 
o the industry had shifted significantly post-Covid and 

changes had been experienced in customer 
attendance/behaviours, product availability and costs 
which needed to be analysed; 

o as a result, a three-month baseline of comparable data 
was required to inform the business plan for the next 
financial year. Some trends had already become 
apparent, and the Centre had achieved increased 
pantomime sales compared to the same period last 
year; and  

o business intelligence data continued to inform the 
business plan.  

 

• Members enquired as to whether the Communities 
Manager had received support in setting up the business 
plan. 

• The Communities Manager responded that: 
▪ the business plan had commenced with low-cost 

film screenings; 
▪ this was followed by live shows but the full 

business plan had awaited the input of Arts 
Council England objectives; 

▪ the interim period allowed for a more detailed 
assessment of which products were profitable; 

▪ networking with independent venues and sharing 
of intelligence had taken place; and 

▪ national audience attitudes were obtained 
through MetrixLab. 

 

• Concern was expressed regarding the promotion of the 
programme however this would be investigated by the 
Task Group.   

 
AGREED: 
 

a) That the content of the report and appendices be noted by 
the Performance Monitoring Panel; 

 
b) That an update on further progress be presented to the 

Panel in six months’ time; and 
 

Page 20



- 51 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

c) That the South Holland Centre Task Group be reconvened 
in early 2023 to look at achievements made and for 
comparisons to be made with the  original 
recommendations of the South Holland Centre Task 
Group. 

  
   
46 SIR HALLEY STEWART TASK GROUP UPDATE   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 

Leisure and Culture to provide an update on the 
recommendations of the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task 
Group. 
 
The Communities Manager introduced the report which outlined 
the following points: 

• background, purpose and scope of the Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field Task Group; 

• playing field usage;  

• conclusion of the report which found that the playing field: 
continued to be well used by football clubs in South 
Holland; supported youth teams; and had been 
successfully used to host/promote a wide range of physical 
activity throughout the district through the ‘Give It A Go’ 
initiative. 

 
Members considered the report and raised the following points: 
 

• Members asked how ‘Give It A Go’ was promoted to clubs 
across the district. 

o The Communities Manager responded that the 
initiative was promoted: 

▪ directly to a directory of sports clubs across 
the district; 

▪ on social media channels; and 
▪ through Parish Councils. 

 

• Members questioned the cost/profitability of the field to the 
Council and requested that the balance sheet be circulated 
to the Panel. Hire costs were also requested. 

 

• Members questioned the relevancy of the Task Group’s 
recommendations due to the passage of time since they 
were agreed.  Only one member of the original Task Group 
still served as a Councillor.  

 
The following debate ensued around the financial responsibility of 
the playing field maintenance, as outlined at point 2.2 of the 

 

Page 21



- 52 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

report:   

• a distinction was drawn between the cost of general 
ground maintenance relating to health and safety 
compliance which was covered by the Council; and that of 
specific Football Association (F.A.) league upgrade 
requirements which was paid for by the respective football 
club; in the latter case, the Council offered support 
regarding the sourcing of contractors; and the Assets team 
ensured that satisfactory standards were upheld; 

• an immediate challenge existed in that whilst the floodlights 
complied with the F.A.’s minimum lux reading requirements 
for Pinchbeck United, they did not comply with the 
minimum requirements for Spalding United, who played in 
a different league. Spalding United would be demoted if the 
upgrade was not completed by the end of the current 
season. The anticipated cost was £25,000.00; 

• Some members were unhappy if the cost of F.A. stipulated 
upgrades to Spalding’s Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field, for 
the benefit of Spalding United, were met by South Holland 
District Council; maintenance of playing fields in other 
areas were funded by Parish Councils;  

• The Communities Manager confirmed that conditional 
league upgrade costs were met by the relevant football 
club, however the Council worked with clubs to assist with 
the recovery of costs; 

• Members were aware that the F.A. assisted with the cost of 
imposed upgrades where a ground was wholly leased by a 
football club, but the Spalding and Pinchbeck teams were 
unable to draw on this resource as the field was a public 
facility. The lease option could be investigated however 
this would involve lengthy negotiations with the Charity 
Commission who would likely insist on the inclusion of a 
provision that the field remain available for the wider use of 
the community and not be restricted to one user.  The 
complexities of the issue were acknowledged, nonetheless, 
some football clubs in similar positions had been 
successful in obtaining grant funding for conditional 
upgrades and members suggested that options be 
investigated for the benefit of football clubs and the growth 
of the town. 

• The Chairman suggested that the Sir Halley Stewart Task 
Group be re-established to investigate opportunities and 
report back to the Committee in the near future. This was 
supported by majority vote. 

• Members were requested to express their interest in joining 
the Task Group. Four members volunteered and 
membership of the re-established Sir Halley Stewart 
Playing Field Task Group was confirmed as: Councillors 

Page 22



- 53 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

Brewis, Redgate, Walsh and Wilkinson. 
 
AGREED: 
 
a) That the content of the report be noted by the Panel; 

and 
 

b) That the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group 
be re-established. 

  
   
47 INVESTIGATION OF NETWORK OUTAGE IMPACTING SHDC 

AND THE WIDER PARTNERSHIP IN SEPTEMBER 2022  
 

  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Assistant Director – 

Regulatory and the Assistant Director – Corporate to update 
Panel Members on the investigation led by PSPS ICT into the ICT 
network issues that impacted on service delivery during the 
outage, and the business continuity de-brief that was carried out 
subsequently.  
 
The Head of Public Protection introduced the report which 
outlined: 

• the network outage issue; and 

• impact upon services and subsequent action 
taken/recommended. This had included a business 
continuity debrief which recommended that service 
managers review their respective business continuity 
plans. 

 
The Head of ICT and Digital (PSPS) outlined the IT investigation;  

• the supplier (Nasstar) had conducted a Major Incident 
Review which had failed to identify the root cause with 
certainty, but had suggested that the issue was caused by 
a circuit fault; 

• one of the BT Openreach connections had been identified 
as the failed element of the service which was resolved 
after a test and circuit reset;   

• PSPS had conducted a Major Incident Review which 
recommended several non-technical actions, including the 
review of Business Continuity plans and documentation of 
any workarounds; and   

• a single internet link had been used and detailed resiliency 
options were being investigated; recommendations would 
come forward in due course. 

 
Members considered the report and made the following 
comments: 

 

Page 23



- 54 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

 

• Members asked whether the outage had related to a 
problem with a physical link. 

o The Head of ICT and Digital (PSPS) confirmed that 
the problem had applied to a physical internet link. 

 

• Members stated that resiliency investigations needed to be 
as thorough as possible; and to ensure that the 
recommendation stated at point 2.2 of the report was 
implemented. The issue needed to be seriously regarded. 

 

• Members had been made aware that schools had been 
affected by the issue and suggested that the Council 
sought/shared solutions with schools. 

o The Head of ICT and Digital responded that public 
sector institutions across the East Midlands utilised 
the same Public Services Network (PSN) 
connection and had therefore been affected by the 
same issue. 

 

• Members sought clarity as to whether the cause was a 
fault with a defective BT line. 

o The Head of ICT and Digital confirmed this was the 
case however there had been other failings which 
were highlighted in the Major Incident Review: this 
had included an uptime of some equipment of seven 
years which was much longer than industry 
standard expectations; as a result, PSPS were 
holding the provider to account and the provider was 
working through recommendations from its own 
Major Incident Review. 

 

• The Assistant Director – Regulatory stated that: 
o as a Partnership, with PSPS, the three Councils 

were in a stronger position and had worked together 
to deal with the incident both as it occurred and 
during the debrief phase; 

o learning would be taken forward;  
o risks around IT were acknowledged and mitigations 

had been in place however technological mitigations 
were only part of the solution; and 

o mitigations included both IT solutions and effective 
service level Business Continuity Plans.  

 

• Members referred to the modern-day dependency on ICT 
and stated that the risk should have been more carefully 
considered. Members requested that the pre- and post-
incident risk scores, which related to the reliability on a 

Page 24



- 55 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

single network line, be circulated to the Panel.  
 
AGREED: 
 

a) That after consideration of the report and findings the 
comments of the Panel be noted; 

 
b) That the Panel supported the conclusions stated at point 2 

of the report; and  
 

c) That when appropriate, a report come forward to the 
Performance Monitoring Panel detailing the results of the 
investigation to develop options and the subsequent action 
taken.  

  
   
48 PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME   
  
 Consideration was given to the report of the Interim Assistant 

Director – Governance which set out the Work Programme of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel. The Work Programme consisted 
of two separate sections, the first setting out the date of the future 
Panel meetings along with proposed items for consideration, and 
the second setting out the Task Groups that had been identified 
by the Panel. 
 
The Democratic Services Officer outlined the following updates to 
the Work Programme. 
 
Regarding Appendix A: 

• the Economic Development and Inward Investment Update 
had been moved to the 24 January 2023 meeting; and  

• the Chairman had requested that a report come forward 
with suggestions for how the successful compliance with 
the Sustainable Products Policy could be monitored. 

  
Regarding Appendix B:  

• the South Holland Centre Task Group and the Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing Field Task Group would reconvene in the 
New Year.  

 
In addition, members noted that a report from the Joint Scrutiny 
Public Transport Task Group would be presented to the Panel in 
due course. 
 
AGREED: 
 
That the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel 

 

Page 25



- 56 - 
 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL - 
29 November 2022 

 

 

be noted.  
   
49 ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE 

URGENT  
 

  
 There were none. 

  
 

   
 
 
 
(The meeting ended at 8.45 pm) 
 
(End of minutes) 
 
 
 

Page 26



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    1 
 

 
 

 ACTIONS FROM THE PERFORMANCE 
MONITORING PANEL MEETING HELD ON  

29 NOVEMBER 2022 

 

Minute 
number 

   

34. 
22/23 

 ACTIONS: UPDATED RESPONSES  

 
✓ 
 

  
Members referred to update regarding Public Conveniences and 
asked why public toilets were not open when advertised.   
 
MINUTED MEETING RESPONSE: The Panel was advised that a 
response would be sought from the Environmental Services 
Team. 
 
UPDATE:  
I have spoken to the operative who working in the Sutton Bridge 
area. There have been 2 occasions pre-Christmas when the 
toilets have been closed due to blocked drains which is a 
common fault with the block at Sutton bridge.  The operative 
reported that the drains were blocked and closed the toilets until 
they were clear and running fine. The Council did not have any 
responsibility for the drainage issues encountered at the Curlew 
Centre toilets. 

 
Neil Stratton  
Charlotte Paine 

    

41. 
22/23 

 WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 
 

 

 
✓ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Members requested that a table of information be provided 
which detailed the staff resources involved in the work on the 
strategy and the amount of time devoted to this area of work.  
 
UPDATE: 
Requested information circulated by email and included below. 

 

 
Rachel Robinson 
 
 
 
 

 

Function: Whom: FTE (Full Time Equivalent) 

Strategic Oversight  Workforce Development Board  Meets monthly 

Strategic development & 
delivery of the Strategy 

Group Manager, 
Organisational Development 

0.7 FTE 

Operational Support Transformation Officer (s) 
Corporate Communications 

0.3 FTE 
0.2 FTE 

Operational delivery HR Team (PSPS) 
ICT Team (PSPS) 
  

Key actions for delivery of the 
Workforce Development 
Strategy form part of the 
Service Level Agreements with 
the HR & ICT Support Services 
teams. 
  
  

In addition to the above, all Service Managers, Assistant Directors and the Senior Leadership play 
an integral role in the successful development and deployment of the Workforce Development 
Strategy.  Feedback and involvement in development is also supported by the Policy Readers 
Panel, Staff Forum, Joint Consultative Committee & Health & Safety Working Group. 

  

Page 27

Agenda Item 3



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    2 
 

    

42. 
22/23 

 Q2 PERFORMANCE REPORT 22-23  

 
✓ 
 

 
(a) 

 
Members referred to the market stall occupancy rate and 
requested that the data be separated to detail occupancy of 
the different markets within the district, rather than as a 
total. 
UPDATE: 
Noted. 

 
Corey Gooch 
 
 
 
 
 

 
✓ 
 

 
(b) 

 
Members noted the 67% increase in calls to the Contact 
Centre due to the Council Tax Rebate Scheme and 
questioned whether action had been taken to improve 
outward communication to reduce demand on the service. 
Was the data being utilised to inform action? 
 
UPDATE: 
Customer contact data is now reviewed weekly, not only at 
a senior management level but within the service to 
influence communication with other internal teams and 
then to residents in order to reduce ‘avoidable contact’.  

 
Corey Gooch 
Amie Househam 
Communications 

 
✓ 
 

 
(c) 

 
Members referred to the Homelessness performance 
detailed at point 2.3 of the report and requested that the 4 
unpreventable cases and the 51 pending cases be reviewed 
to see if earlier engagement would lead to better outcomes. 
In depth triage at an early stage was called for 
 

UPDATE: 
Housing data is being reviewed to understand the link 
between earlier engagement and how this can improve 
outcomes for residents.  

 
Tom Marsters 
Gemma Johnson 

 
✓ 
 

 
(d) 

 
Members noted the Freedom of Information performance 
at point 2.4 of the report and asked whether late responses 
had been attributable to multiple requests from single 
enquirers. A narrative which detailed the reasoning behind 
the data was requested for future reports. 
 
UPDATE: 
Noted. 

 
Corey Gooch 

 
✓ 
 

 
(e) 

 
Members noted that the number of reports which had not 
been made available to the Democratic Services team for 

 
Corey Gooch  
 

Page 28



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    3 
 

agenda publication had doubled and asked for commentary 
to be included in future Performance reports. 
 
UPDATE: 
Noted. 

 
✓ 
 

 
(f) 

 
Regarding the format of the report: 

• a refinement of commentary was requested 
throughout 

• contextual commentary was required where 
statistics alone had been stated; and 

• where percentages had been stated, the statistics 
behind the percentages also needed to be included. 

 
UPDATE: 
Noted. 

 
Corey Gooch 

    

45. 
22/23 

 SOUTH HOLLAND CENTRE ACTION PLAN  

 
✓ 

 
 

 
An update on progress against the Business Plan be 
presented to the Panel in six months’ time 
 
UPDATE: 
Added to the work programme. 

 
Phil Perry 

    

46. 
22/23 

 
 

SIR HALLEY STEWART TASK GROUP UPDATE 
 

 
 

 
x 

 
(a) 

 
Members asked for the balance sheet and hire costs to be 
circulated to the Panel. 
 

 
Phil Perry 

 
* 

 
(b) 

 
That the Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group be re-
established to investigate the issues raised during the 
meeting. 
 
UPDATE: 
The Democratic Services Manager is in the process of 
setting up the Task Group to convene early February 2023 – 
to report to the 14 March 2023 Performance Monitoring 
Panel meeting. 

 
Matthew Hogan 
Democratic Services 

    

47. 
22/23 

 INVESTIGATION OF NETWORK OUTAGE IMPACTING SHDC 
AND THE WIDER PARTNERSHIP IN SEPTEMBER 2022 

 

Page 29



 

 ACTIONS  

 = completed, * = in hand, x = outstanding    4 
 

  

 
✓ 

 
(a) 

 
Members referred to the modern-day dependency on ICT 
and stated that the risk should have been more carefully 
considered. Members requested that the pre- and post-
incident risk scores, which related to the reliability on a 
single network line, be circulated to the Panel.  
 
UPDATE: 
Requested risk scores circulated to the Panel on 9 
December 2022 

 
Jackie Wright 

 
x 

 
(b) 

 
A report come forward to the Panel detailing the results of 
the resiliency options investigation and subsequent action 
taken 
 

 
Jackie Wright 

    

    

  OUTSTANDING ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL MEETINGS 
 

 

45. 
21/22 

 
* 

16 MARCH 2022 
PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL WORK PROGRAMME 

For the Task Group covering ‘The effectiveness of 
management companies’ set up to undertake maintenance 
on residential estates throughout the district past, present 
and for the future’ be commenced/reviewed in the near 
future. 
 
UPDATE: the Task Group covering ‘The effectiveness of 
management companies’ to be merged with the Public Open 
Spaces Task Group. Initial discussions regarding a way 
forward to take place in June 2022 between Head of 
Planning, Portfolio Holder for Planning and Chairman of the 
Performance Monitoring Panel.  The Portfolio Holder 
confirmed that the issue was not yet ready for PMP 
involvement and was still being discussed at Executive level.    
At the 29 November 2022 PMP meeting, the Chairman 
explained the logic behind the merging of the Task Groups 
and gave reassurance to members that both areas would be 
scrutinised in due course. 

Phil Norman 
Cllr Grocock 

 

Page 30



 
1 

 

 

    

KEY DECISION PLAN 
 

Issued – 13 January 2023 

  

 

Representations in respect of all the matters shown should be sent in writing, at least one week before the date or period the decision 
is likely to be made, to:  

 Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 
Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 

 

The Key Decision Plan shows all Key decisions that the Council is likely to make over the next twelve months 
 
The Key Decision Plan is updated on a rolling basis and shows the decisions that will be considered and the date when the decision is 
expected to be made. In accordance with the Council’s Constitution the DECISIONS detailed within this document, unless otherwise 
stated, come into force and may then be implemented on the expiry of a 5 working day call-in period  from the date of publication of 
any decision.   
 
Key decisions are: “A decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on communities in two or more 
Wards of the Council and / or is likely to result in the Authority incurring expenditure, generating income or making savings in any 
single financial year above the threshold of £75,000 in respect of revenue expenditure and £180,000 in respect of capital expenditure.” 
 
Significant decisions are: 1. A decision made in connection with setting the Council Tax; 2. A decision to approve any matter relating 
to a Policy or Strategic Plan; 3. Any non-Executive decision which significantly affects the community in two or more wards or electoral 
divisions. Some of the decisions will be recommendations to full Council, particularly if they impact on the Budget and the Policy 
Framework (comprising of statutory plans and strategies) 
 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 8

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
2 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
 
Contract 
variation 
 

To agree a variation to 
the contract relating to 
the acquisition of 
affordable homes in 
Holbeach. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader 
 
Before 20 Jan 2023 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for 
Environmental 
Services 
(Councillor 
Roger Gambba-
Jones) 
 
 
Procurement of 
Fuel Supplier 
 

To provide details of the 
preferred supplier for the 
fuel required for South 
Holland District Council 
fleet vehicles 
 

Portfolio Holder 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for 
Environmental Services, or 
Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Charlotte Paine, 
Head of 
Environmental 
and Operational 
Services 
cpaine@sholland
.gov.uk  

P
age 32

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:cpaine@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
3 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Approval of the 
Lincolnshire 
Homelessness 
Strategy 2022-
2027 
 

Approval of the new 
Lincolnshire 
Homelessness Strategy 
(also incorporating the 
Rough Sleeper Strategy) 
which will replace the 
current county-wide 
strategy 2017-2021 
(extended for 1 year until 
the end of 2022) 
 

Stakeholders 
Public 
Service users 
Members including 
Portfolio Holder 
Voluntary sector 
 
Draft strategy has been 
through a formal 6 week 
consultation process and 
was also discussed at 
Policy Development Panel 
on 04.10.22. 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for HRA & 
Private Sector Housing, or 
Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Gemma 
Johnson, 
Homeless 
Reduction and 
Private Sector 
Improvement 
Manager 
gemmajohnson
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
 
Purchase of 3 
affordable homes 
in Moulton 
Chapel 
 

To consider the 
purchase of 3 S106 
affordable homes from a 
developer, on a site in 
Moulton Chapel. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 33

mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:gemmajohnson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
4 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
 
Purchase of 4 
homes in 
Moulton Chapel 
 

To consider the 
purchase of 4 newbuild 
market dwellings in 
Moulton Chapel. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for Assets & 
Planning 
(Councillor 
Rodney 
Grocock) 
 
 
Purchase of 7 
houses in 
Crowland, from a 
developer 
 

To consider purchasing 
7 newbuild homes on a 
site in Crowland, from a 
developer 
 

Ward members 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Portfolio Holder for Assets 
& Planning, or Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Caroline Hannon, 
Head of Delivery 
Caroline.Hannon
@sholland.gov.u
k  

P
age 34

mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Caroline.Hannon@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
5 

 

Deputy Leader of 
the Council 
(Councillor 
Charles Nicholas 
Worth) 
 
 
Land at 
Holbeach FEZ 
 

To consider a decision 
relating to land at the 
Holbeach FEZ, linked to 
the delivery of the site 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Deputy Leader of the 
Council, or Leader 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

Matthew Hogan, 
Assistant 
Director - 
Strategic Growth 
and 
Development 
Matthew.Hogan
@sholland.gov.u
k  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Heating Upgrade 
Contract 
 

To award a contract to 
commence on the 1st 
April 2023, for works 
associated with the 
heating upgrade 
programme to the 
housing stock 
 

Portfolio Holder HRA and 
Private Sector Housing 
Assistant Director Housing 
Christine Marshall 
John Medler 
Sam Knowles 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

P
age 35

mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
6 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Contract for 
Kitchen and 
Bathroom 
upgrades 
 

To award a contract to 
commence on 1st April l 
2023 for the provision of 
works for the kitchen 
and bathroom upgrade 
programme to the 
Housing stock. 
 

Portfolio holder HRA and 
Private Sector Housing 
Assistant Director Housing 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 31 Jan 2023 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for People, 
Places, Economy 
(Councillor 
Charles Nicholas 
Worth) 
 
 
National Portfolio 
Organisation 
(NPO) 
 

Support the activity plan 
for funding associated 
with NPO and the 
establishment of a 
cultural board. 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Cabinet 14 Feb 2023, or 
Leader 

Lydia Rusling, 
Assistant 
Director – 
Economic 
Growth 
Lydia.Rusling@e
-lindsey.gov.uk  

P
age 36

mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Lydia.Rusling@e-lindsey.gov.uk
mailto:Lydia.Rusling@e-lindsey.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
7 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Sheltered 
Housing Digital 
Alarm Upgrade 
 

Upgrading of the 
sheltered housing hard 
wired pull cord system 
from an analogue to a 
digital system. 
 

Tenants; Portfolio Holder 
and informal all member 
briefing 
 
Formal and informal 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 28 Feb 2023 

Beverley 
Chapman, 
Sheltered 
Housing Project 
Manager, Jason 
King, Assistant 
Director - 
Housing 
Beverley.Chapm
an@sholland.gov
.uk  
JasonKing@sholl
and.gov.uk  

Deputy Leader of 
the Council 
(Councillor 
Charles Nicholas 
Worth) 
 
 
Capital 
contribution to 
the Spalding 
Western Relief 
Road 
 

To consider an 
executive decision 
relating to a capital 
contribution towards the 
Spalding Western Relief 
Road 
 

 
 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Deputy Leader of the 
Council, or Leader 
 
Before 28 Feb 2023 

Matthew Hogan, 
Assistant 
Director - 
Strategic Growth 
and 
Development, 
Paul Jackson, 
Executive 
Programme 
Manager 
Matthew.Hogan
@sholland.gov.u
k , 
pauljackson@sh
olland.gov.uk  

P
age 37

mailto:Beverley.Chapman@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Beverley.Chapman@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Beverley.Chapman@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:JasonKing@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:Matthew.Hogan@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:pauljackson@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:pauljackson@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
8 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
The Square - 
Windows 
 

Contract for the 
provision of specialist 
heritage window 
contractor to undertake 
the removal and 
refurbishment of 
windows facing on to the 
Courtyard of the Grade II 
listed building 
 

Jason King 
Cllr C Lawton 
Christine Marshall 
Samantha Knowles 
Rhonda Booth 
 

 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 1 Mar 2023 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
uPVC window 
and door 
replacement 
contract  2023 - 
2026 
 

Contract for the  
manufacture and 
installation of 
replacement of existing 
time expired uPVC 
windows and 
refurbishment of uPVC 
doors 
 

Councillor Christine J 
Lawton, Portfolio Holder - 
HRA & Private Sector 
Housing. 
Christine Marshall 
Sam Knowles 
John Medler 

 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 1 Apr 2023 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

P
age 38

mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
9 

 

Portfolio Holder 
for HRA & 
Private Sector 
Housing 
(Councillor 
Christine J 
Lawton) 
 
 
Festival Square 
STW - Upgrade 
works 
 

To procure a Design and 
Build Contractor to 
undertake upgrade 
works to Festival Square 
Sewerage Treatment 
Works 
 

Jason King 
Cllr C Lawton 
Christine Marshall 
Samantha Knowles 
Rhonda Booth 

 
 
 

Report and any 
relevant 
appendices 

Assistant Director – 
Housing, or any other 
officer with delegation 
 
Before 1 Apr 2023 

David Higgs, 
Technical 
Contracts Officer 
David.Higgs@sh
olland.gov.uk  

 
 
 

*Cabinet Membership 

The Lord Porter of Spalding CBE (Leader) 
Councillor C N Worth (Deputy Leader of the Council) 
Councillor P E Coupland (Deputy Leader of the Cabinet) 
Councillor J Astill (Portfolio Holder 
Councillor A Casson (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Gambba-Jones (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor R Grocock (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor C J Lawton (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor E Sneath (Portfolio Holder) 
Councillor G J Taylor (Portfolio Holder) 

 
 

P
age 39

mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk
mailto:David.Higgs@sholland.gov.uk


PORTFOLIO 
HOLDER / 
SUBJECT 

PURPOSE OF 
DECISION 

CONSULTEES AND 
METHOD OF 

CONSULTATION 

SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTS 

LIKELY DATE OF 
DECISION AND WHO 

WILL MAKE DECISION 

OFFICER 
CONTACT 

INFORMATION 

 
10 

 

 
If you have any comments or queries regarding any of the entries in the Key Decision Plan please contact: 

 
Democratic Services, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, Lincolnshire, PE11 2XE 

Telephone: 01775 764451 Email: demservices@sholland.gov.uk 
 

P
age 40

mailto:demservices@sholland.gov.uk


 

 

NOTE TO: Performance Monitoring Panel 

DATE: 24 January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

PURPOSE:  

Sustainable Products Policy Briefing Note 

To provide an update on plans for a framework to ensure the newly 

adopted Sustainable Products Policy is successfully monitored and 

measured across the Partnership.  

NOTE OF: Climate Change and Environment Manager 

NOTE:   

The Sustainable Products Policy was adopted by South Holland District Council on 16 November 

2022 finalising its adoption across the South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership. 

Since then, the Climate Change and Environment Team have met with the new Head of 

Procurement & Contracts to discuss how this will fit within a new draft Procurement Strategy. This is 

a positive initial step given that procurement decisions have previously not given any consideration 

to issues of this nature. Officers are currently working to explore what existing tools/frameworks are 

in existence across other Councils to consider what inclusion in our Procurement Strategy may need 

to look like without reinventing the wheel. The draft Procurement Strategy is due to be ready, subject 

to approval, by April 2023. 

Alongside this, the Climate Change and Environment Team will start in early 2023 to identify ‘quick 

wins’ in line with the new Sustainable Products Policy. Undertaking a full audit is not possible 

because the recording of procurement decisions and purchases across Councils and departments 

has not been routinely undertaken. Instead, contact with key teams/services alongside visits to main 

Council assets will help determine current usage of items. Examples of particular items considered 

may include things such as the purchasing of paper towels, sugar/milk sachets and small bottles of 

cleaning products/materials. This information can then be used to identify opportunities to change or 

reduce how items are purchased, particularly where this is done below a threshold which may trigger 

wider Procurement Strategy guidance. 

Officers will also be contacting other Councils that have existing single-use waste policies to 

understand the monitoring frameworks they have in place. Once again, reinventing the wheel when 

there are potentially mechanisms already in existence does not seem a constructive use of time so 

sharing of knowledge which can be altered to suit our own local requirements will be prioritised if 

such frameworks exist. 

Some form of baseline understanding of existing purchasing in relation to single-use products is 

required before embedding any form of monitoring framework. As outlined, this is in itself a 

challenging exercise. Careful consideration will need to be given to how any monitoring of the 

Sustainable Products Policy is dovetailed within wider procurement monitoring or whether it needs to 

be considered as a separate monitoring framework. 

A report will be brought back to PDP in April/May 2023 in relation to progress on the above by which time 

the draft procurement strategy should have been agreed and an initial audit/identification of ‘quick wins’ 

should have taken place. 

 
Page 41

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Performance Monitoring Panel 

DATE: 24th January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Crime and Disorder Report 

 

To provide Members with an update on Community Safety 

Partnership work at a local and county level. 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Communities & Facilities 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Emily Spicer, Assistant Director Wellbeing & Community Leadership  

Dee Bedford, Community Safety and Enforcement Manager 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards); 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

1. This report provides an overview of the work currently being undertaken by the South & 

East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership at a local level and the Safer Lincolnshire 

Partnership at County level, along with information on CCTV and the Spalding Public 

Space Protection Order. The report recommends that the contents are noted, and 

additional areas of focus are considered for inclusion in future reports. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. That the content of the report be noted 

2. That Members consider areas of focus to be included in future updates 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

1. The content of the report be noted to ensure the Panel is up to date on the current work 

being undertaken 

2. The focus of future updates provides members with an opportunity to advise of areas of 

work they require more detail on to help ensure high performance levels Page 43

Agenda Item 10



 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

1. Do nothing 

 

1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 Community Safety Partnerships (CSP) were established under the Crime and Disorder Act 

1998. A CSP is required for each local government area, bringing the police, local 

authorities, fire and rescue, health, and probation to formulate strategies for the reduction 

of crime. 

 

1.2 Locally, the South & East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership (SELCSP) is an 

informally merged partnership administered through the South and East Lincolnshire 

Council’s Partnership (S&ELCP), covering Boston Borough, East Lindsey, and South Holland. 

At a county level, there is an informally merged partnership known as the Safer Lincolnshire 

Partnership (SLP), administered by Lincolnshire County Council. 

 

1.3 Statutory duties of a Community Safety Partnership are as follows.  

 

- To prepare and implement a partnership plan (strategic assessment) that sets out a 

strategy for the reduction of reoffending, crime and disorder, combatting substance 

misuse, community engagement and addressing the priorities identified in the strategic 

assessment.  

- To set up protocols and systems for information sharing.  

- To regularly engage and consult with the public about their community safety priorities 

and issues. 

- To commission domestic homicide reviews (DHR) following notification from the police 

of a domestic homicide.  

- To hold one or more public meetings during the year. 

 

1.4 This report will provide an overview of the work of the local SELCSP and the county SLP. The 

report also provides information in relation the Public Spaces Protection Order (PSPO), and 

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) in South Holland. 

 

2. SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP 

 

2.1 The SELCSP works to create local solutions to local problems to tackle issues of crime and 

disorder and improve the quality of life for people living, working or visiting the area. 

 

2.2 SELCSP is a partnership made up of the following organisations: - South Holland District 

Council, Boston Borough Council, East Lindsey District Council; Lincolnshire County Council; 

Lincolnshire Police; Lincolnshire Fire and Rescue; Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation 

Trust; Probation Service; Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner. 

 

Page 44



2.3 Non-statutory agencies also contribute to the work of the partnership including housing 

associations and the voluntary sector. The SELCSP works closely with the County SLP and 

supports its priorities. 

 

2.4 The SELCSP has recently produced a Community Safety Strategy for 2022-2025 to 

demonstrate the work of partners at the sub-regional level. A copy can be found on our 

website Community Safety Partnership - South Holland District Council (sholland.gov.uk). 

The strategy was taken through the appropriate committee processes of all three sovereign 

councils for sign-off, this process was finalised on Wednesday 23rd November 2022. An 

action plan has been developed to support delivery; this is a working document however a 

copy of the current version is in Appendix A.  

 

2.5 Identified five priorities are as follows: 

 

2.6 Anti-Social Behaviour (ASB) - Tackling ASB is a core role for the partnership with dedicated 

ASB Officers and Police Coordinators working together and with other agencies daily. We 

address high risk and complex ASB cases through multi-agency Anti-Social Behaviour Risk 

Assessment Conferences (ASBRACs). The district councils coordinate the Community Trigger 

(also known as the Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review) which gives victims the right to 

demand a formal case review where the local threshold is met. 

 

2.7 Hate Crime – Through working more closely with Just Lincolnshire (the single equality 

organisation in the county) it has been identified that reporting of Hate Crime in 

Lincolnshire has decreased by 12.5% in 2020-21 compared to 2019-20, a reversal of year on 

year increases over the last decade and against a 9% increase nationally. This is concerning, 

particularly as Hate Crime is widely acknowledged to be underreported. The SELCSP seeks 

to work to raise awareness of hate crime, targeting individuals and groups who are more 

likely to be victims, and ensure there are a variety of methods for people to report Hate 

Crimes and incidents with confidence. 

 

2.8 Safer Streets & Night-Time Economy – Community safety work to support the Night-Time 

Economy and the safety of our streets within urban centres and local neighbourhoods 

provides greater opportunities for local businesses and communities to thrive with a 

reduced risk of crime and disorder. Government’s Beating Crime Plan gives focus to early 

intervention, prevention, and practical measures to make communities safer, and to tackle 

serious violence and neighbourhood crimes. The Safer Streets Fund has enabled 

improvements to be made to CCTV and ANPR capacity in South Holland.  

 

2.9 The Safety of Women & Girls – Using local data and information, a bid was submitted to 

round four of the Safer Streets fund and was successful in bringing nearly £400k to the 

partnership area. This will support work on Violence against Women and Girls (VAWG) in 

public places and aims to increase feelings of safety. CCTV was cited as something that 

would increase feelings of safety amongst local college students in Skegness and this is 

central to the bid. A Sexual Violence Needs Assessment, commissioned by the PCC in 2020, 

showed that densely populated areas have the highest volume of offences. Public 

engagement undertaken by the PCC’s Office also identifies that people worrying about 

being raped or sexually assaulted has risen year on year. Using police crime data and 

information from StreetSafe it has been possible to identify hot spot locations where Page 45

https://www.sholland.gov.uk/article/6286/Community-Safety-Partnership


harassment is the most frequently reported issue in Boston, Skegness, and Spalding. These 

areas are the focus of the bid, incorporating key night-time economy areas and pedestrian 

routes which have been identified as being disproportionately affected by VAWG. This 

compliments other work streams including the Women’s Concordat, which aims to improve 

outcomes for women and girls at risk of entering or who have already entered the criminal 

justice sector, and ensures it is embedded within local work streams to keep our sub-region 

a safe area to live, work and visit. 

 

2.10 Vulnerability & Safeguarding – Information from the Index of Multiple Deprivation shows 

that people living in the 10% most deprived neighbourhoods in Lincolnshire are three times 

more likely to have an adult safeguarding enquiry than those living in the least deprived 

areas, nearly four times likely to be a victim of crime, and nearly six times more likely to be 

in children’s social care. The second and third most deprived areas in the county can be 

found within our sub-region - Skegness and Chapel St Leonards. Frontline officers, including 

police, council and health workers, encounter children and vulnerable adults on a regular 

basis, it is imperative that they are invested in safeguarding and adequately trained to carry 

out their duties competently. Recent cases of modern-day slavery and exploitation in 

Boston and South Holland demonstrate the need for officers and the public to report any 

suspicions. The SELCSP can drive work locally to ensure that officers can identify signs of 

issues such as sexual exploitation, county lines, modern slavery, and serious and organised 

crime, as well as understanding more recent approaches such as Contextual Safeguarding. 

 

 

3. MULTI-AGENCY CASE MEETINGS 

 

3.1. The Community Safety and Enforcement Team facilitate on a four weekly basis an Anti-

Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference (ASBRAC) where high risk cases are referred 

into.  

 

3.2. The team also facilitate a four weekly Vulnerable Adults Panel (VAP). The meeting produces 

clear action plans for how multiple agencies can support the most vulnerable in our 

community. There is a pathway available to Team Around the Adult for those more complex 

cases where further multi agency work is required. The referrals into VAP have been 

consistent with 12 in 2019/20, 14 in 2020/21, 13 in 2021/22 and 10 to date in 2022/23.  

 

4. CCTV 

 

4.1. There are 25 cameras installed in the district as part of South Holland’s CCTV Public Space 

Protection Scheme; these are located in Crowland, Holbeach and Spalding. The cameras are 

monitored by appropriately trained and authorised operators in the Boston Borough 

Council control room, who liaise with local partners including Lincolnshire Police, 

Shopwatch, Street Pastors and the Council’s Community Wardens. 

 

4.2. Appendix B outlines the number of incidents, arrests and evidence packs requested for 

each quarter. In total for the first three quarters there have been 91 incidents recorded and 

28 arrests made. The data has also been broken down within the Appendix for each of 

three locations; Spalding, Holbeach and Crowland, please see Appendix C. Page 46



 

4.3. The zone analysis report for Q1 and Q2 in 2022/23 can be viewed in Appendix D. The zone 

analysis report for Q3 in 2022/23 can be viewed in Appendix E. They detail the incident 

types for Spalding and Holbeach with a further breakdown of incident types for each 

camera. Crowland does not appear in the analysis as no incidents were logged in this area.  

 

4.4. Below are some example cases of where CCTV has been used to assist with investigations:  

 

- Grievous Bodily harm in Spalding – 4 individuals were arrested  

- Drink driving offence in Holbeach – driver was arrested 

- Common Assault in Spalding – a suspect was arrested, and community resolution was 

completed 

- Grievous Bodily Harm in Spalding – suspect charged with GBH 

- CCTV Operator identified a fight in Spalding – call made to Police who were provided 

with last location of victim and taxi details of the 3 alleged offenders. Resulted in 3 

arrests and one offender following a search was found to be in possession of drugs 

 

4.5 The installation of the new high-tech CCTV cameras has been completed in Spalding with 18 

key locations updated following a successful bid to Central Government’s Safer Street 

Funding earlier this year made for the partnership sub-regions.  The new cameras use 

innovative artificial technology which will help Lincolnshire Police locate vulnerable victims 

using clothing descriptions and vehicle types automatically.  The cameras will help deter 

crime in the town centre and make those who visit feel safer.   

 

4.5. A review of CCTV within the district is due to take place this financial year with a focus on: 

• Reviewing camera placement  

• Reviewing roaming settings for each camera (this has still been completed on a 

smaller scale when new information has been received which has resulted in 

changes to camera pre-sets)  

• Costings for any new camera’s  

• Work to explore possibilities of further analysis of the data provided by CCTV  

 

5. STREETSAFE 

 

5.1  Streetsafe is a national initiative intended to provide insight into where individuals have 

felt unsafe in Lincolnshire public spaces. StreetSafe is a service for anyone to anonymously 

report public places where they have felt or feel unsafe, because of environmental issues, 

such as street lighting, abandoned buildings or vandalism and/or because of some 

behaviours, for example being followed or verbally abused. 

 

5.2 Please note: 'StreetSafe' is not for reporting crime or incidents. 

 

5.3 In one area of the county, they received five reports on different dates reporting lack of 

lighting near a specific building.  The Neighbourhood Policing Team shared this data with 

the owners of that premises who committed to improving the lighting in that area and no 

further StreetSafe reports were received.  Without StreetSafe reporting, the owners did not 

realise the impact on their visitors. 

 Page 47

https://www.lincs.police.uk/notices/street-safe/street-safe/street-safe/


5.4 A useful video explaining StreetSafe can be found at Violence against women and girls | 

Lincolnshire Police (lincs.police.uk). A poster has also been put up in the Member’s lounge. 

 

5.5 Details of any reports that are relevant to the Council are now being shared to ensure we 

can act where appropriate. 

 

6. SAFER LINCOLNSHIRE PARTNERSHIP (SLP) 

6.1 Safer Lincolnshire Partnership Health Check - Over the course of 2022, the partnership has 

been implementing recommendations resulting from the last SLP Health Check. On a 

routine basis the partnership conducts a review to:  

▪ Ensure compliance with statutory duties 

 ▪ Understand the efficiency and effectiveness of current governance arrangements  

▪ Understand the efficiency and effectiveness of the current operating and delivery model 

6.2 There were a number of elements analysed as part of the comprehensive health check, the 

findings of which were collated together to inform recommendations. Elements of the 

review included a desktop assessment (looking at agency/representative attendance, action 

logs, risk register, delivery plan, compliance with statutory duties and research into other 

area Community Safety Partnerships), interviews with SLP Strategy Board attendees, 

Overview & Scrutiny Board members and Core Priority Group Chairs & Co-ordinators, 

workshops and a survey of Core Priority Groups. The overarching findings in respect of the 

review were:  

- The SLP is effective, complies with statutory duties and has met its aims 

- Is a true multi-agency partnership; partners recognized and valued the breadth of 

agencies engaged  

- Recognition of the significant progress made since the last review in 2017  

- Support functions of co-ordination and analysis are crucial 

6.3  The resulting recommendations, therefore, were areas identified to drive the partnership 

forward and ensure it continues to deliver efficiently and effectively for the communities of 

Lincolnshire. A summary of those recommendations, agreed by the SLP Strategy Board, are 

as follows: 

6.4 Governance:  

- Overview & Scrutiny Board to be removed from the SLP structure 

- Scrutiny of the SLP to be fulfilled via:  

▪ Introduction of an Annual General Meeting 

 ▪ Introduction of an Annual Report  

▪ Continuation of Crime & Disorder Committees at a local authority level (as per 

statutory requirement)  

- Establish a relationship with the new Domestic Abuse partnership and identify the 

assurance required in respect of compliance with Domestic Homicide Reviews (DHR). Page 48

https://www.lincs.police.uk/police-forces/lincolnshire-police/areas/campaigns/campaigns/violence-against-women-and-girls/
https://www.lincs.police.uk/police-forces/lincolnshire-police/areas/campaigns/campaigns/violence-against-women-and-girls/


Note: completion of DHRs delegated to the Domestic Abuse Partnership, however the 

statutory duty remains with the SLP. 

6.5 Operating Structure: 

-  Introduce more analytical information at SLP Strategy Board meetings more routinely  

- Introduce a more task and finish-based approach  

- Agendas to be more focused to allow greater debate and discussion 

6.6 Analysis: 

- An action plan required to include:  

▪ Revise the Information Sharing Agreement/progress Memorandum of 

Understanding  

▪ Understand data available across the partnership for joint analysis and formalise 

data sharing  

▪ Address capacity within the analytical team and ensure roles/responsibilities are 

clarified and structured appropriately 

6.7 Measuring Success: 

-  SLP Strategy Board to be clear on expected outcomes when setting a task 

- Ensure regular progress monitoring 

 - Conduct evaluations as appropriate 

6.8 Communications:  

- Introduction of a public newsletter  

- Introduce summaries post meetings to assist partners disseminate outcomes  

- Utilise existing opportunities across the partnership for public engagement 

6.9  Finance:  

- A funding paper to be drafted setting out options for possible ways forward in respect of 

funding arrangements 

6.10 Formal Merger:  

- Partners agreed to commence arrangements to progress to a formal merger 

6.11  Strategic Assessment: 

a) The SLP has a statutory duty to carry out a strategic assessment to identify issues to be 

addressed in the area. The last assessment was produced in 2021 to inform the priority 

issues to be addressed by the partnership from April 2022. 

b) In an unprecedented approach, the strategic assessment was produced as a tri-board 

product serving not only the SLP but also the Lincolnshire Safeguarding Adults Board (LSAB) 

and Lincolnshire Safeguarding Children Partnership (LSCP). The document was a holistic and 

forward-looking assessment of community safety and safeguarding issues, considering the 

changing environment including the impact of the pandemic. The Police & Crime 

Commissioner routinely shares the raw data from his annual survey with the Safer Page 49



Communities Analytical team which ensures public perception information is integrated 

into the strategic assessment providing a more rounded and richer picture of community 

safety issues in the County. 

c) The information was presented to members of the SLP and utilised by them to 

determine, under the statutory responsibilities, areas of focus. In doing so, the following 

considerations were also considered: Is a multi-agency partnership response required? 

What are specifically trying to achieve? How does it overlap with other areas of 

business/priorities? It is measurable? Is it realistic? It is proportionate? Is there a definable 

end point? Are there sufficient resources and capabilities to deliver the partnership 

response? Who will provide leadership for delivering each part of the response? 

6.12 Strategy:  

6.13 Detailed below are the strategy, parameters and success measures set by the SLP Strategy 

Board in respect of each of our statutory areas of responsibility. For each area a Core 

Priority Group has been established. These are the delivery arm of the SLP, attended by 

partners from across several agencies appropriate to the subject matter being addressed. 

The CPGs have been drafting delivery plans and a number have already been signed off by 

the SLP Strategy Board (namely, Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Disorder and Reducing 

Reoffending) with the remainder in development. The delivery plans are live documents are 

therefore subject to frequent updates, further information on the delivery plans is available 

upon request. 

6.14 Crime and Disorder  

▪ Focus: Digitally Enable Fraud and Identify Theft  

▪ Strategy: Reduce victimisation through targeted prevention work  

▪ Parameters: Implement a range of targeted options taking account the victim 

 demographics and deprivation location as informed by the evidence base 

▪ What will success look like: delivery of identified prevention activity and increased 

awareness 

6.15 Anti-Social Behaviour  

▪ Focus: Neighbourhood Anti-Social Behaviour 

▪ Strategy: Targeted prevention work based on evidence, problem solving options 

for complex and longer-term neighbourhood Anti-Social behaviour  

▪ Parameters: Completion of prevention work, and clarity of options/potential 

alternative options for complex disputes  

▪ What will success look like: Increased awareness for both professionals and 

communities, resolution of neighbourhood anti-social behaviour in a timely 

manner and a decrease in severe cases including a reduction in the number of 

cases that escalate 

6.16 Reducing Reoffending  

▪ Focus: Integrated Offender Management, Women’s Strategy and Transition  

▪ Strategy: Provide alternatives to Criminal Justice for those in transition years, with 

appropriate support and diversion and link with the Integrated Offender 

Management Strategy  

Page 50



▪ Parameters: Focus to be on female offenders and those in transition years 18 – 25, 

linking as appropriate to the Integrated Offender Management scheme 

▪ What will success look like: Reduction in repeat offending in female and transition 

years, utilise the Integrated Offender Management performance framework 

6.17 Substance Misuse  

▪ Focus: County Lines and Drug Related Deaths 

▪ Strategy: Ensure support services are available, utilise the evidence base to ensure 

prevention work is targeted in areas of greatest deprivation, use evidence base to 

address Drug Related Deaths  

▪ Parameters: Focus on early prevention in areas of greatest deprivation, ensure 

sufficient support services are available in those areas and the Drug Related Death 

process  

▪ What will success look like: Reduction of people with substance misuse issues 

including utilising Drug Related Death data, reduction of impact on health services, 

effective support in right locations 

6.18 Performance and Analysis:  

6.19 The Safer Communities Analytical Team, whilst currently under capacity, are working to 

establish ‘dashboards’ of data to track the impact of the activity of CPG and help direct 

future activity. More broadly, the team intend to routinely scan the environment and 

present the information to the SLP Strategy Board, meeting their objective of being a 

proactive and dynamic partnership ready to respond to emerging issues at the earliest 

opportunity. 

6.20 New Duty: 

6.21 Following public consultation in July 2019, the Government announced that it would bring 

forward legislation introducing a new serious violence duty on public bodies which will 

ensure relevant services work together to share data and knowledge and allow them to 

target their interventions to prevent serious violence altogether. 

6.22 The Government also announced that it would amend the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to 

ensure that serious violence is an explicit priority for Community Safety Partnerships 

(known as the SLP in Lincolnshire) by making sure they have a strategy in place to tackle 

violent crime. 

6.23 The Duty requires specified authorities to identify the kinds of serious violence that occur in 

their area, the causes of that violence (so far as it is possible to do so), and to prepare and 

implement a strategy for preventing and reducing serious violence in the area. 

6.24 The Duty requires the following specified authorities to work together, and to consult 

educational, prison and youth custody authorities for the area in the preparation of their 

strategy:  

▪ Police  

▪ Probation Services  

▪ Youth Offending Teams  

▪ Fire and Rescue Services 

 ▪ Clinical Commissioning Groups  

▪ District councils ▪ County Councils Page 51



 

6.25 The Police, Crime Commissioner, SLP and Public Health share a commitment to the priority 

to establish a Violence Reduction Programme. To that end, due to funding from the PCC, a 

Violence Reduction Strategic Needs Assessment has been undertaken. 

 

6.26 The duty commences on 31st January 2023 however the SLP adopted serious violence as a 

priority ahead of this date. In recognition of the Community Safety Partnerships wider remit 

in relation to community safety, and that many issues concerning violent crime can be 

interrelated, this will help to ensure that individual strategies (such as domestic abuse and 

substance misuse) are aligned without being duplicative. Membership of the group 

comprises of the statutory partners who have a responsibility under the serious violence 

duty.  

 

6.27 The government requirement is for a needs assessment to be produced and partners to 

come together over the course of this year with a strategy to be in place by 31st January 

2024. 

 

7. CONCLUSION 

7.1 This report has outlined the work carried out by the Safer Lincolnshire Partnership, the 

South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership. 

7.2  The report also details PSPO Enforcement data and CCTV data for the district and the work 

that is due to be completed in the current financial year. 

8. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

8.1 The report will give an overview of the work taken place to support the Council’s statutory 
duty under s17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

 
8.2 It will support an increased understanding and awareness of the partnership working taking 

place in the district. 
 
9.    IMPLICATIONS 

9.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

9.1.1 None 

9.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

9.2.1  The area of work detailed within this report supports ‘Your Place’ and ‘Your Health and 

Wellbeing’ priorities. 

9.2.2 The production of a Community Safety Strategy is a strategic activity within the S&ELCP 

Annual Delivery Plan 2022-23. 

9.3  STAFFING 

9.3.1 Current staffing resource across the partnership will support the delivery of community 

safety activity with additional resources identified through further funding as necessary 

9.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

Page 52



9.4.1 The statutory duties required of CSPs, as set out in the Crime & Disorder Act 1998, which are 

met through working with the County SLP which works as a combined area for Lincolnshire.  

9.5  DATA PROTECTION 

9.5.1  Data Protection will be dealt with under the partnership’s information sharing agreements 

5.6  FINANCIAL 

9.6.1 External funding has been granted through the government Safer Streets Fund which will 
support the Safer Streets and Safety Against Women and Girls priorities. Further funding 
opportunities will be sought wherever possible to support delivery of the Community Safety 
strategy. That aside, delivery will be managed from existing partner commitments and 
resources. 

 
9.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

9.7.1 All risks will be managed as part of the strategy and action plan development as 

appropriate. 

5.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

9.8.1 Consultation was undertaken with the Portfolio Holders of each sovereign council, 

members of the South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership and with key 

officers across the S&ELCP (Corporate Management and Service Managers) for the 

Community Safety Strategy. Feedback was positive and constructive.  

9.8.2 The delivery timeframe for the Community Safety Strategy (as set out in the Annual 

Delivery Plan) is Quarter 2, 2022.  

9.9  REPUTATION 

9.9.1 It is important that the council demonstrate its commitment to dealing with community 

safety issues and responding to local concerns. 

9.10  CONTRACTS 

9.10.1 None 

9.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

9.11.1 The Council has a duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take steps to 

reasonably prevent crime and disorder in the district. Changes to this legislation were 

brought in through the Police and Justice Act 2006, with subsequent regulations coming in 

to force in 2007. The regulations set out the minimum requirements for partnership 

working to ensure effective practice and that all partnerships deliver to a common 

standard. This report evidenced compliance with the Acts and the regulations. 

9.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

9.12.1 There are no direct implications from this report. It should be noted that CCTV surveillance 

techniques and investigations need to consider Article 8 of the Human Rights Act, which 

covers right to privacy. This is also subject to regulation under RIPA and CCTV Codes of 

Practice. 

9.13  HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
Page 53



9.13.1 Work carried out to reduce crime and disorder within the district and to support those that 

are affected helps to improve the health and wellbeing of those residents. 

9.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

9.14.1 None 

9.15  LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

MISSIONS 
This paper contributes to the follow Missions outlined in the Government’s Levelling Up White 

paper. 

Health By 2030, the gap in Healthy Life Expectancy (HLE) between local areas 
where it is highest and lowest will have narrowed, and by 2035 HLE will 
rise by 5 years. 

Wellbeing By 2030, well-being will have improved in every area of the UK, with the 
gap between top performing and other areas closing. 

Pride in Place By 2030, pride in place, such as people’s satisfaction with their town centre 
and engagement in local culture and community, will have risen in every 
area of the UK, with the gap between the top performing and other areas 
closing. 

Crime By 2030, homicide, serious violence, and neighbourhood crime will have 
fallen, focused on the worst-affected areas. 

 

10. ACRONYMS 

CSP - Community Safety Partnership  

SLP - Safer Lincolnshire Partnership  

SELCSP - South and East Lincolnshire Community Safety Partnership  

S&ELCP - South and East Lincolnshire Councils Partnership  

CPG - Core Priority Group 

 CCTV - Closed Circuit Television  

DHR – Domestic Homicide Review  

VAWG – Violence Against Women and Girls  

PSPO – Public Spaces Protection Order 

VAP – Vulnerable Adults Panel 

ASBRAC – Anti-Social Behaviour Risk Assessment Conference 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Community Safety Strategy Action Plan 2022-23 

APPENDIX B CCTV statistics - District 

APPENDIX C CCTV statistics – Area based 

APPENDIX D SHDC zone analysis 22-23 Q1 – Q2 

APPENDIX E SHDC zone analysis 22-23 Q3 

 

Page 54



BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Dee Bedford 

dee.bedford@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Wellbeing and Community 

Leadership 

emily.spicer@sholland.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Portfolio Holder for Communities & Facilities (if 

required) 

 

 

Page 55



 

Page 56



 

1 
Last updated on 25/10/22 

Community Safety Strategy – Action Plan 2022-2023 

 

Area of 
Focus 

Project / Campaign Overview Timescales Progress 
 

  
Sa

fe
r 

St
re

et
s 

&
 N

ig
h

t-
Ti

m
e 

Ec
o

n
o

m
y 

Night-time economy – 
Op California 
(East Lindsey) 

• Operation to tackle drugs and promote safety in licensed 
premises. 

• The ELDC Senior Licencing Officer works with the Police 
Licencing Officer and the ‘drugs itemiser’ (which can 
detect residue of a range of drugs on people and 
surfaces in premises). 

• General promotion of safe nights out during summer 
season. 

• 7th /8th /28th July 

• 4th August 

• 11th August 

• 1st September 
2022 

 

Visits were undertaken at several 
locations across the coast. Proprietors 
and revellers were receptive to the 
activity and there was some positive 
feedback that it made people feel safe. 
 
The number of visits was slightly 
impacted by the loss of the itemiser 
machine maintained by ELDC which has 
reached the end of its working life. 
However, due to the thorough cleaning 
and maintenance programme (facilitated 
by ELDC), the machine was operational 
for several years more than expected.  
Replacement of the machine is currently 
being explored.  

Promotion of 
StreetSafe & 
Identifying areas that 
can be made to feel 
safer 
 

• A pilot service for anyone to anonymously inform police 
of public places where you have felt or feel unsafe, 
because of environmental issues (e.g., street lighting, 
abandoned buildings or vandalism, and/or because of 
some behaviours, e.g., being followed or verbally 
abused. 

• Review data and establish if any improvements can be 
made to areas to make them feel safer. 

 

• May 2022 and 
ongoing 

StreetSafe is regularly being promoted on 
social media sites and on ‘Nextdoor’ by 
Lincolnshire Police and other partners. 
 
The impact of streetlights being turned 
off was raised at ELDC Full Council on 
12/10/22 (when the Community Safety 
Strategy was tabled). It was also part of 
discussions at SHDC Scrutiny Committee. 
Further work to be undertaken to 

P
age 57



 

2 
Last updated on 25/10/22 

establish concerns and feedback to LCC 
accordingly via appropriate channels. 

Safer Streets Round 2 
promotion (East 
Lindsey) 

• CCTV Upgrades in Ingoldmells and Chapel St Leonards. 

• Installation of digital screens for safety messages. 

• Promotion of caravan watch 

• August / 
September 2022 

The digital screens were due to go live in 
August 2022 with a list of initial material 
being complied for use. 
 

Purple Flag • Purple Flag aims to raise the standard and broaden the 
appeal of town and city centres at night.  

• Scope out partner appetite to work towards achieving 
Purple Flag status in Boston, Spalding, and Skegness. 

•  

• November 2022 
onwards 

Initial document produced to summarise 
the process for partners to review and 
consider. 

  
Ta

ck
lin

g 
A

n
ti

-S
o

ci
al

 B
eh

av
io

u
r 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
Awareness week 
(Countywide) 

• Annual campaign. The focus this year is on the impact of 
anti-social behaviour on young people, and the 
importance engaging with the wider public about their 
vital role in tackling ASB. 

• 18th to 24th July 
2022 

A social media campaign was coordinated 
across the county. 
 
A community event was held in East 
Lindsey by Platform Housing Group with 
partner agencies including ELDC/Lincs 
Police/Fire & Rescue/Victim Support and 
attendance from Elected Members. 
 

Community Trigger re-
launch of policy & 
procedures 
(countywide) 

• The Anti-Social Behaviour Case Review (also known as 
the Community Trigger) allows victims of persistent ASB 
to request a formal review of their case, where the local 
threshold is met. In Lincolnshire we are revising and re-
launching the countywide policy and procedures to 
educate staff and Elected Members about the process as 
well as the community. 

 

• 17th October 2022 A pool of people from across the county 
have been trained to act as independent 
chairs for panel meetings. 
 
The revised policy and procedures 
document is being taken to the County 
ASB CPG on 4th October 2022 for final 
sign-off pending some amendments. 
 
A comms plan for the launch of the new 
processes is ready to be led by district 
councils. 
 

P
age 58



 

3 
Last updated on 25/10/22 

Pilot a process 
(adapted from NKDC) 
to respond to reports 
of cannabis fumes 
from private 
properties in Boston 
Rural West 

• Process to be piloted in Boston Rural West (which covers 
Wybeton, Swineshead, Kirton and Sutterton). This will 
be monitored with the potential for further roll-out 
more widely.  

•  Agreed at the local Priority Setting 
meeting in Boston on 3rd October 2022. 

  
H

at
e

 C
ri

m
e

 

Hate Crime Awareness 
week 

• Annual campaign to raise awareness of what hate crimes 
are and how to report. 

• 8th to 15th October 
2022 

Comms plan produced ready for the 
commencement of the awareness week. 

Increasing reporting of 
hate incidents 

• The Anti-Social Behaviour diary will be adapted to 
include a question on whether the victim believes that 
the ASB is targeted because of the victim’s identity or 
perceived identity    

• By 31st October 
2022 

To be completed in October 2022 for 
ongoing use. The number of incidents 
identified as such will be monitored on a 
routine basis. 
 

  
Th

e 
Sa

fe
ty

 o
f 

W
o

m
en

 &
 G

ir
ls

 

White Ribbon Day & 
16 Days of Action 

• An annual day to end violence against women. This day 
marks the start of the 16 days of action against domestic 
violence. 

• 25th November 
to 10th December 
2022 

White ribbons have been acquired to 
distribute to Elected Members to ask 
them to pledge their support. 

Safer Streets round 4  
 
 
 
 
 

 

• CCTV Safe Zone areas in Boston/Spalding & Skegness 
town centres – promoted walking routes for areas that 
will have blanket CCTV coverage  

• Expansion and updating of current CCTV software 
system looking at person/description identification 
where CCTV cameras locate and monitor automatically 

• Community/volunteer CCTV operators 

• Just Lincolnshire – Community ambassador programmes 
/ awareness raising about Anti-Social Behaviour / reduce 
barriers to reporting ASB & Violence Against Women & 
Girls. 

• August 2022 to 
March 2024 

Camera installation commenced in 
Spalding ahead of schedule on 20th 
September 2022. Digital infrastructure 
has been installed and configured in 
preparation for the upgraded digital 
cameras. To-date, 36 cameras have been 
installed and recording is enabled on the 
new Spalding local digital recorder with 
live stream and playback enabled from 
Boston Borough Council. 
A draft job description is being produced 
for the community-based volunteer 
scheme which will provide administrative 
support for CCTV operators and police 

P
age 59



 

4 
Last updated on 25/10/22 

officers to enable them to focus on the 
core parts of their job. Volunteers will 
conduct image reviews and produce 
evidence packs for court. 

Self Defence Classes 
for females in Boston. 

• Supporting the continuation of a local self defence class 
for women and girls (aged 12 upwards) at the Geoff 
Moulder Leisure Complex. 

• Supporting publicity of the group.  

• October 2022 
onwards 

Funding to be provided from left over 
Sanctuary Scheme to purchase 
equipment to support the continuation of 
the group. 

  
V

u
ln

er
ab

ili
ty

 &
 

Sa
fe

gu
ar

d
in

g 
    

Dementia Bands pilot • There are an estimated 11,800 people in Lincolnshire 
living with dementia, 7,200 have been officially 
diagnosed (NHS data). 

• This pilot project, led by the Office of the Police & Crime 
Commissioner with support from local community 
groups, aims to protect vulnerable people living with 
dementia by giving them a wristband that stores the 
contact details of the wearers next of kin. If they get 
lost, police or the public can quickly access their next of 
kin’s details and contact them 

• September 2022 
onwards 

The pilot scheme was launched on 21st 
September 2022. The pilot will use 600 
bands across East Lindsey with further 
roll-out if successful. 

 

P
age 60



Appendix B 

SHDC CCTV Performance Data 22/23 

Month Arrests Evidence Reviews Incidents 

     
Q1 

    
April 8 4 7 18 

May 2 7 13 11 

June 6 2 5 9 

Q.Total 16 13 25 38 

     
Q2 

    
July 0 4 8 5 

August 7 8 11 23 

September 0 5 8 5 

Q.Total 7 17 27 33 

     
Q3 

    
October 1 7 14 6 

November 3 6 8 10 

December 1 10 12 4 

Q.Total 5 23 34 20 

     
Q4 

    
January 0 0 0 0 

February 0 0 0 0 

March 0 0 0 0 

Q.Total 0 0 0 0 

     
Year Total 28 53 86 91 

Page 61



Appendix B 

 

Page 62



Appendix C 

 

Month Arrests Evidence Reviews Incidents Arrests Evidence Reviews Incidents Arrests Evidence Reviews Incidents

Q1

April 8 4 6 16 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 2

May 2 7 13 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

June 6 2 4 9 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0

Q.Total 16 13 23 36 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 2

Q2

July 0 4 8 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

August 5 7 10 20 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 3

September 0 5 8 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Q.Total 5 16 26 30 0 0 0 0 2 1 1 3

Q3

October 1 7 14 6 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

November 3 6 8 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3

December 1 8 10 4 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 0

Q.Total 5 21 32 17 0 1 1 0 0 1 1 3

Q4

January

February

March

Q.Total 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Year Total 26 50 81 83 0 1 3 0 2 2 2 8

Spalding Crowland Holbeach

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Appendix D 

Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 

Page 65



Printed at:31/10/2022  13:29:20 Page 2 of 9 

Page 66



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 
Zone: Holbeach 

No. of Incidents Category Name Sub Category Name 

Anti-Social Behaviour  1 

Criminal Damage & Arson  1 

Public Order  1 

Traffic Offence  1 Drink / Drug Driving 

Weapons  1 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:   5 

Zone: Spalding 

No. of Incidents Category Name Sub Category Name 

Alarm Activation  1 

Alcohol  6 

Anti-Social Behaviour  7 

Bicycle Theft  1 

Breach of Conditions or Ban  2 

Burglary  2 

Criminal Damage & Arson  2 

Drugs  2 

Licensing  1 

Other Crime  5 

Public Order  6 

Search for Person  5 

Shoplifting  5 

Suspicious Behaviour  2 

Traffic Offence  1 Collision 

Vehicle Crime  1 Vehicle Theft 

Violence and Sexual  11 Assault 

Weapons  6 Bladed Article 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:   66 

Total No. of Incidents :   71 

Page 3 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 67



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 

Page 4 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 68



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 

Page 5 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 69



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 
Call Source Summary 

Zone: Holbeach 

No. of Incidents Call Source 

 1 Police 

 4 Police - Radio 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:   5 

Zone: Spalding 

No. of Incidents Call Source 

 11 Operator Generated 

 3 Police 

 1 Police - e-mail / Fax 

 3 Police - Phone 

 40 Police - Radio 

 7 Pubwatch 

 1 Shopwatch 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:   66 

Total No. of Incidents :   71 

Page 6 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 70



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 

Page 7 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 71



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 
Camera Summary 

Zone: Holbeach 

No. of Incidents Camera Name Camera Location 
 4 SHDC 220 High Street Holbeach 

 2 SHDC 221 High Street Holbeach 

 1 SHDC 222 Station Road Holbeach 

 3 SHDC 223 High Street Holbeach 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:   5 

Zone: Spalding 

No. of Incidents Camera Name Camera Location 
 2 SHDC 202 Broad Street 

 14 SHDC 203 Market Place 

 16 SHDC 204 Hall Place 

 11 SHDC 205 Sheep Market 

 30 SHDC 206 Red Lion Street 

 28 SHDC 207 New Road 

 5 SHDC 208 Herring Lane 

 7 SHDC 209 Swan Street 

 6 SHDC 210 Winfrey Avenue 

 2 SHDC 211 Westlode Street 

 12 SHDC 212 Winsover Road 

 2 SHDC 214 The Crescent 

 4 SHDC 215 Vine Street 

 7 SHDC 226 Castle Sports Complex 

 7 SHDC 227 Castle Sports Complex 

 5 SHDC 228 Castle Sports Complex 

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:   66 

Total No. of Incidents :   71 

Page 8 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 72



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone 

01/10/2022  

00:00:00 

to 01/04/2022  

00:00:00 

Page 9 of 9 31/10/2022 13:29:20 Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Page 75

Appendix E



Printed at:10/01/2023  13:50:43 Page 2 of 9

Page 76



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Zone: Holbeach

No. of IncidentsCategory Name Sub Category Name

Alcohol  1

Burglary  1

Weapons  1

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  3

Zone: Spalding

No. of IncidentsCategory Name Sub Category Name

Drugs  2

Other Crime  1

Public Order  4

Search for Person  1

Shoplifting  1

Suspicious Behaviour  2

Traffic Offence  1

Violence and Sexual  3Assault

Weapons  2Firearms

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  17

Total No. of Incidents :  20

Page 3 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 77



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Page 4 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 78



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Page 5 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 79



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Call Source Summary

Zone: Holbeach

No. of IncidentsCall Source

 1Police

 2Police - Radio

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  3

Zone: Spalding

No. of IncidentsCall Source

 3Operator Generated

 4Police

 1Police - Phone

 9Police - Radio

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  17

Total No. of Incidents :  20

Page 6 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 80



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Page 7 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 81



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Camera Summary

Zone: Holbeach

No. of IncidentsCamera Name Camera Location

 2SHDC 220 High Street Holbeach

 2SHDC 221 High Street Holbeach

 2SHDC 222 Station Road Holbeach

 3SHDC 223 High Street Holbeach

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Holbeach:  3

Zone: Spalding

No. of IncidentsCamera Name Camera Location

 1SHDC 203 Market Place

 8SHDC 204 Hall Place

 4SHDC 205 Sheep Market

 3SHDC 206 Red Lion Street

 4SHDC 207 New Road

 1SHDC 208 Herring Lane

 4SHDC 209 Swan Street

 3SHDC 210 Winfrey Avenue

 3SHDC 212 Winsover Road

 1SHDC 226 Castle Sports Complex

 1SHDC 227 Castle Sports Complex

 1SHDC 228 Castle Sports Complex

Total No. of Incidents in Zone Spalding:  17

Total No. of Incidents :  20

Page 8 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 82



Incidents Summary Analysis by Zone

01/01/2023  00:00:00to01/10/2022  00:00:00

Page 9 of 910/01/2023 13:50:43

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 

REPORT TO: Performance Monitoring Panel 

DATE: 24th January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Review of Implemented Planning Decisions 

 

To update the Performance Monitoring Panel subsequent to the 

report being presented to Planning Committee 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Assets & Planning 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Phil Norman – Head of Planning 

Lucy Buttery – Principal Planning Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: There are no wards or communities affected 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

Part 3, Section D (Delegations to Committees) of the Constitution states that the Performance 

Monitoring Panel shall ‘revisit a number of implemented planning decisions’. 

The latest visits took place on 27th October 2022 and a follow up report was presented to the 

Performance Monitoring Panel on 29th November 2022 setting out the conclusions drawn from 

the exercise. Subsequent to that meeting, the report was presented to Planning Committee on 

7th December 2022, who were invited to submit any comments on the review back to the 

Performance Monitoring Panel. No new comments or issues were raised at Planning Committee. 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the contents of this report be noted.  

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To keep the Panel updated on the review process. 

 
Page 85

Agenda Item 11



1. BACKGROUND 

 

1.1 The Local Government Association’s Probity in Planning guide highlights that it is good 

practice for councillors to visit a sample of implemented planning permissions to assess the 

quality of the decisions and the development. It is suggested that this should improve the 

quality and consistency of decision-making, strengthen public confidence in the planning 

system, and can help with reviews of planning policy. 

 

1.2 At South Holland District Council, this review is undertaken by the Performance Monitoring 

Panel. Part 3, Section D (Delegations to Committees) of the Constitution states that the 

Performance Monitoring Panel shall ‘revisit a number of implemented planning decisions’.  

 

1.3 The Panel had last carried out a tour of the District on 5th September 2019. It was intended 

that the tours would be carried out on an annual basis going forward, however the 

Coronavirus pandemic resulted in tours not being undertaken in 2020 and 2021. 

 

2. THE TOUR 

 

2.1 The latest tour took place on 27th October 2022 with morning and afternoon sessions. The 

morning session focussed on sites in Spalding, whilst the afternoon took in sites in Weston 

and Holbeach. Five Members took part and were present for the whole day.  

 

2.2 A selection of seven residential developments were visited, as well as two commercial sites. 

The sites chosen comprised both small and large-scale schemes with some under 

construction and some now complete. 

 

2.3 For the day, Members were provided with an information pack outlining the background 

and key issues relating to each site as well as a block plan of the site. Verbal assistance was 

given on site where necessary and Officers noted Members’ feedback for each site. 

 

2.4 A debriefing was held after the morning and afternoon sessions of the tour to review the 

day and draw conclusions. 

 

3. CONCLUSIONS AND AGREED ACTIONS 

3.1 The main conclusions drawn from the exercise and the recurring themes of the day were 

that there is often a lack of attention to detail and there are clear concerns around the 

management and maintenance of public areas such as open space and incidental areas of 

landscaping.   

3.2 It was noted that some schemes which were viewed as overly dense on paper feel different 

in reality on the ground. 

3.3 At the Performance Monitoring Panel on 29th November 2022, Members discussed the 

report and the following issues were raised/reiterated: 

- The site visits were undertaken on a wet day and it was clear to see that there were 

issues with drainage on certain sites with surface water flooding being observed and 

drains being higher than the road in some instances. 

Page 86



- Concern was raised that where elements are not finished on some sites, that this is not 

being picked up. 

- Sites do not feel as dense on the ground as on paper. 

- The siting of meter boxes remains an issue. 

- The management and maintenance of public open space and drainage features (basins, 

swales etc.) could be improved. 

3.4 A fully summary of comments can be found in Appendix A. 

3.5 Following the Panel meeting on 29th November 2022, the report was presented to Planning 

Committee on 7th December 2022 and Committee members were invited to submit any 

comments that they may have back to the Panel. No new comments or issues were raised 

at Planning Committee, therefore there is nothing further to add in respect of this review 

and report. 

 

4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 The delivery of quality development within South Holland on an ongoing basis. 
 
5.    IMPLICATIONS 

5.1  SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCILS PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1  None. 

5.2  CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1 The review of implemented planning decisions relates to the following corporate priorities: 

• Your Home – Enable effective planning and delivery of housing solutions to meet 

local needs and aspirations to ensure that our residents have access to a range of 

housing options in the district; and ensure that our residents are enabled to live in 

high quality housing no matter the tenure; 

• Your Place – Support Spalding and Holbeach to be attractive places that people 

want to visit, live and work whilst supporting all other towns and villages in the 

district to meets the needs of their communities. 

 

5.3  STAFFING 

5.3.1 None. 

5.4  CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 None. 

5.5  DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1  None. 

5.6  FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 None. 
 
5.7  RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 None. Page 87



5.8  STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 None. 

5.9  REPUTATION 

5.9.1 None. 

5.10  CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None. 

5.11  CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None. 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None. 

5.13  HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None. 

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None. 

5.15  LINKS TO 12 MISSIONS IN THE LEVELLING UP WHITE PAPER  

5.15.1 None. 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1  None. 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Summary of Comments from Review of Implemented 

Planning Decisions (27th October 2022) 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

Planning Committee – 7th December 2022 

Performance Monitoring Panel – 29th November 2022 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Page 88



Report author: Lucy Buttery 

lbuttery@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Assistant Director - Planning and Strategic 

Infrastructure 

Mike.Gildersleeves@boston.gov.uk 

 

Page 89



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A 

 
Summary of Comments from Tour  

(October 2022) 
 
 

Aspects that had been done well 
 
- It was commented that schemes that appeared dense on paper did not actually feel this 

way on the ground 
- Meter boxes look better on those sites where they were on the side elevations 
- Variation of the building line was identified as a positive on two sites 
- Variation in brick type welcomed 
- Projecting courses of brickwork on one scheme was a good design feature 
- Three storey properties with no habitable rooms at ground level worked well with the 

garages and entrance space at ground floor in the context of the surrounding 
development 

- Positive comments were made in relation to the use of permeable block paving to assist 
with drainage 

- The most positive comments were in relation to a site of commercial units 
- Unallocated parking on site of those units considered to be of benefit as gives 

customers more flexibility on where to park 
- Bin storage on site located in unobtrusive place 
 
 
Aspects that could be improved 
 
- Concerns were raised on a number of sites regarding the maintenance and 

management of public areas, such as strips of grass, drainage features incl. attenuation 
basins, knee rail fencing etc. as there were instances of neglect or inaccessibility 

- Some sustainable drainage features didn’t appear to be functioning as intended and 
concern was raised over the steepness and safety of some attenuation ponds 

- On one scheme it was commented that it was not clear which properties parking spaces 
were allocated to and that could lead to residents parking on the road 

- On another site there appeared to be only one parking space and a garage 
- Where dwellings were raised 1m above ground level as flood mitigation, comments were 

made about wheelchair access for occupants where there are stepped entrances at the 
front 

- On one site the turning head didn’t appear to be functioning as intended with a car 
parked in that space 

- Obtrusiveness of meter boxes on front elevations in a number of instances 
- Lack of variety of front door colours in some developments 
- Cables on the front elevation of houses look untidy 
- Any play areas installed should be of a suitable standard 
- Unfinished tactile paving for crossing point on one site and play area indicated on one 

site plan not provided 
- Limited variation in house types and design on one scheme 
- Planting does not always appear to have been thought through in terms of what it would 

look like in the future (e.g. vigorous growth and potential to grow large if not managed 
well) 

- Refuse collection points not always clear and no segregation 
- Permeable block paving could be used on more sites across the district 
- On one site the open space was lacking grass and unusable due to mud 

Page 91



Appendix A 

- Cladding that had been used on the front elevation of dwellings on one site terminated 
only a few centimetres round the corner of the side elevation and looked unfinished 

- Render was preferred to cladding 
- Metal railings beginning to rust on one site – quality should be improved in future 
- The window design on one commercial site includes a ledge that could attract pigeons – 

droppings already evident on the front elevation of a black steel building 
- Roads and footways were also unfinished on this site when buildings were already 

occupied. It was felt that this does not look appealing to developers who might be 
interested in other parcels of land on site as it currently stands. Thought could be giving 
to requiring their completion at an earlier stage in development. Some potential health 
hazards also identified such as exposed wires to utility box and fencing around trench 
poorly secured 

- The difference in design between the buildings on that site were noted and it was 
commented that different design trends might become evident as other parcels come 
forward in the future 

- 3D visuals of proposed developments would be beneficial at planning application stage 
 
 
 
 

Page 92



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Performance Monitoring Panel 

DATE: 24th January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Economic Development and Inward Investment Update 

 

To provide an update to Performance Monitoring Panel on current 

work being undertaken to support the South Holland economy 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Councillor Nick Worth, Deputy Leader of the Council, Portfolio 

Holder for People, Places and Economy 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Matthew Hogan, Assistant Director - Strategic Growth and 

Development 

Nigel Burch, Economic Development and Inward Investment 

Manager 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: (All Wards); 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

• The Holbeach FEZ continues to progress with its delivery, with the following activity have taken place 

over the past period:  

o A formal opening and launch of the site in September 2022, attended by representatives of 

the food industry 

o The opening of the £5m Hub building, which will accommodate up to 36 SME businesses in 

the agri-food sectors. The Hub is now occupied by two business, including a Florida-based 

business that has expanded into South East Lincolnshire 

o The commencement of the new headquarters for AJS – a locally based business involved in 

automation in the food industry 

o The submission of planning application for 13 industrial units by Stirling Developments 

o Further interest and enquiries in Phase 2 of the site, which is jointly owned by SHDC and LCC  

• The Council’s Investment Plan for South Holland’s share of the UK Shared Prosperity Fund, having 

been submitted to Government during the summer, has now been approved. Work has started to 

develop the detailed approach through which he funds by which it will be administered delivered 

across the wider Partnership. The funds have a strong focus on supporting businesses and the 

economy.  

• The team continues to work with a number of local businesses to help them realise their expansion 

plans, as well as working with the Inward Investment Team at the County Council to help find Page 93

Agenda Item 12



suitable sites and premises for enquiries that come through the GLLEP and the DIT. Developments 

are continuing to come forward on the Wardentree Lane Industrial Estate, and the team are working 

closely with the owners of the Clay Lake and Gateway sites to support inward investment interest.  

• Grants4growth has now committed the last of its capital funding and the remaining 6 months of the 

project will see the verification, evaluation, and financial closure of the programme take place. 

Planning is taking place around a replacement scheme, with a view to utilising UKSPF funds to deliver 

the programme for the benefit of local businesses.  

• The team continues to seek to raise awareness of the economic opportunity of the area, coupled 

with the challenges we need to address to support further growth. This includes establishing a 

relationship with a newly formed All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) with a focus on Freight 

Logistics, hosting Midlands Connect (the sub-regional transport body for the area) for a two day tour 

of South and East Lincolnshire, and submitting consultation responses to seek to influence the 

Cambridge and Peterborough Combined Authority’s Transport Strategy in respect of the A1, A14 an 

A47 (all of which are important routes for food businesses in the area).  

• The team are working with a number of investors interesting in delivering hydrogen production and 

power distribution, which has the potential to significantly support growth and business 

development in the area.  

• The team are working with schools in the area to support a variety of initiatives linked to skills, 

careers and STEM subjects.  

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the panel give consideration to the report. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the report is noted for consideration, so as to inform PMP on activity taking place to 

support the local economy and invite any questions, thoughts and proposals from the panel. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

That the report be noted for consideration. 

 

1.  BACKGROUND 

1.1 The Economic Development and Inward Investment team plays a key role in contributing to 
and assisting in the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan by helping to support the local 
economy utilising a number of different work strands. The overall objective for the service 
is to maximise opportunities within the local economy for the creation of jobs, in particular, 
those of higher values utilising skills that are now needed to help local business transition 
towards higher productivity using automation and robotics and other higher tech solutions, 
whilst retaining a readily available workforce with the appropriate skills to service the 
inevitable seasonality of the agriculture/horticulture/food manufacturing sector that is the 
bedrock of our local economy. The Inward Investment element aims to support existing 
businesses to expand and attract new businesses into the district, thus strengthening the 
supply chain and growing business rate income. 

 

Page 94



1.2 The purpose of this report is to provide members with a further update on the continuing 
work streams carried out by the team. 

 
2. REPORT  

 Business Engagement and Inward Investment 
 
2.0 Work continues on both Inward Investment and working with 17 local businesses who wish 

to expand or find new premises. In the last period the team successfully sourced new 
premises for a Dutch company who were unable to stay on their previous rented site as it 
had been taken over by a national company who themselves are new investors into the 
district and have expansion plans. This has allowed the Dutch company to stay in South 
Holland, at the same time helping the company whose site they have rented space on, to 
rent out unused space. 
The team continue to respond to Inward Investment enquiries that come through the DIT, 
GLLEP and County Council, many of the requests are very difficult to give any meaningful 
response to as often there will be specific requirements, for example one recent ask was for 
a site that had to be adjacent to a graphite production facility, but where appropriate,  
potential sites are put forward. 

  
2.1 The team continue to work with the tourism sites Visit Lincolnshire and Destination 

Lincolnshire to ensure that all publicly available information relating to visitor attractions in 

South Holland is up to date, accurate and accessible. 

2.2 Work continues with colleagues at Lincolnshire County Council in the delivery of much 

needed improvements to the A16, particularly the Greencell and MacDonalds roundabouts 

in Spalding, which is being delivered through a £19.5m levelling up investment to this major 

route in South Holland and Boston. This follows on from our work to support and shape the 

funding bid that LCC led on. 

2.3 The wider team continue to work with a private investor who is looking to develop both 

hydrogen and power distribution across the SELCP. This project, if delivered, will support a 

wide range of businesses in the area, particularly the logistics sector as they strive for net 

zero within their own sector, but also the wider supply chain over the coming years.  

2.4 After a break of two years, (2020 and 2021) the South Holland Business awards again took 

place at Springfields Exhibition Centre in early November. Organised by the Lincolnshire 

Chamber of Commerce, the prestigious black-tie event was attended by 342 people, an 

increase of well over 100 on the last event in 2019. The awards celebrated the best of 

business both big and small in South Holland, and once again, SHDC sponsored the Business  

Person of the Year award. Officers from the Inward Investment team hosted the 4 finalists 

on the night, the eventual winner being Justin Szymborski of Melon Co. 

2.5 The team have been involved in work to promote and support high street businesses by the 

making and sharing on social media of 19 videos featuring local retail businesses, and the 

provision of a support package of social media advice delivered by Clare Bailey, the 

nationally recognised ‘Retail Champion’. 

2.6 During the summer, the Federation of Small Businesses held the National Local 
Government Awards to showcase the work done by Councils in supporting SME’s through 
the pandemic. South Holland District Council entered the Recovery and Growth Scheme 
into these awards and were shortlisted  in the category ‘All round business friendly Council’ 
Katrina Pierce, Development Manager for Lincolnshire said:  

Page 95



“The standard and range of entries was so strong in this region that to make the shortlist 

bestows great credit on the team at South Holland District Council, and I was delighted to 

see their efforts were recognised by the judges. To be shortlisted as one of the most all-

round business friendly councils in England is no mean feat. I now look forward to 

continuing to work with them to ensure we have a vibrant and strong local SME community 

across South Holland and that they are as supported as possible during these tough times.”   

 
 Key Employment Sites 
 
3.0 The employment land on Wardentree Lane Industrial Estate continues to be developed 

with ARK ICT (new HQ), Produce Packaging (new warehouse) and Brookes (7 industrial 
units, all of which are already let) finishing out new buildings along Elsoms Way. A planning 
application has been submitted for 4 industrial units at Bervor Close on the Wardentree 
Lane Industrial Estate, and an application for 12 industrial units has been approved for 
Phase 1 of the Food Enterprise Zone at Holbeach with construction of these units 
anticipated to start in early Spring 2023. An application for 8 industrial units has also been 
received and approved for the site previously occupied by Fleet Road Nursery at Holbeach. 
The team continue to work with the agents marketing both the Clay Lake and Gateway 
allocated employment sites on the A16 and since the last report, have met with 3 
businesses who have expressed an interest. 

  
3.1 A planning application has now been approved for a King Prawn Hatchery at Decoy Farm in 

Crowland, and on Thursday 27th October, officers met with a potential foreign investor and 
introduced them to the horticultural/food production/logistics sector in the district. To 
facilitate this introduction, colleagues from the Inward Investment team at the County 
Council, the GLLEP, the University of Lincoln and two local businesses were brought 
together, all of whom played a key role in showcasing the joined up approach being taken 
towards Inward Investment in South Holland which was very much appreciated by the 
investor who commented that of all the sites they have visited both here and abroad, they 
had not come across such a united, business friendly attitude. 

 
South Lincs Food Enterprise Zone 

 
4.0 The Hub building, a key element of the overall FEZ strategy in providing collaborative space 

and opportunities for business engaged in the agritech sector, and which has been 

delivered utilising £5m of Government funding, has now been officially handed over to the 

County Council and an intermediary’s day was held on Wednesday 20th July attended by 33 

businesses that could be potential end users of the building, along with others who may 

have clients that fit the target audience.  As a result, 5 offices are now occupied by 2 

tenants, a USA based packaging company, and an accountant specialising in agricultural 

clients, and keen interest is being shown in some of the remaining space. The Inward 

Investment team have been instrumental in making a number of introductions which are 

being followed up by the agents, and interest is being shown by external companies wishing 

to hold Business to Business and networking events early in 2023. 

Holbeach based business AJS are well under way with the construction of their new 

premises, and we expect the construction of 13 speculative units by Stirlin Developments to 

start early in the new year. Targeted marketing of plot 2 as a gateway site is being 

considered to recognise its position as a trophy asset suitable for the location of a HQ style 

occupier.  Page 96



4.1 Interest in Phase 2 of the site is growing rapidly, dialogue is progressing with one potential 

purchaser and potential partners in supporting its delivery. An event to celebrate the 

opening of the University of Lincoln Campus and the progress so far on the wider FEZ took 

place on the 22nd September which was aimed at senior business leaders and elected 

members. Work is also progressing on a strategy, in conjunction with Western Power 

Distribution, now renamed National Grid, to enable power reinforcements to Holbeach and 

the surrounding area, helping to support delivery of the FEZ and wider planned growth. 

4.2 Since last November officers have been working with a company based in Fenland who 

were interested in purchasing Port Sutton Bridge which had ceased operation and was on 

the market. The team’s role has been to facilitate meetings, signpost them to relevant 

agencies and act as an interface with the various departments at SHDC and LCC as and 

when required. The company took possession of the Port on the 31st October 2022 and as 

of the 4th January 2023, the port once again has an operational licence. Officers will 

continue to support where appropriate, particularly in making connections with a variety of 

potential end users. 

Skills, Careers and Employment 

5.0 As reported at the March PMP, skills and increasingly recruitment issues were a key issue 

for most businesses both large and small. The last update to PMP reported that DWP were 

re-energising their employer teams and had a new support offer for employers called Plan 

for Jobs was being rolled out utilising all DWP’s resources to provide a range of help and 

advice including: 

• Jobs Fairs and Events 

• School Advisors 

• Disability Employer Advisors 

• Disability Conference Scheme 

• Employer Services 

• Find a Job 

• Movement to Work 

• Mentoring Circles 

• Apprenticeships/Traineeships 

 

5.1 The Enterprise Advisor Network run by the GLLEP has now been renamed The Careers Hub.  

All South Holland Schools are now members of the Careers Hub with all schools other than 

Springwell Academy engaged with several different employers including SELCP. 

Following the success of the jobs fair held on the 13th May 2022 which saw 344 people 

interacting with 27 employers who were offering around 800 vacancies. On the day, 127 

people handed in CV’s, were invited to inductions, offered positions or were being sifted for 

opportunities. A further event has been booked for 19th May 2023, more information will 

be released nearer the time, but will again be supported by the DWP and colleagues from 

the Careers Hub. 

 

5.2 The partnerships Investment and Skills officer, part of the wider Inward Investment team, 

has been working with South Holland Schools by means of the following. 

• University Academy Long Sutton – delivered workshops across the whole of year 9 

for their Super Learning Day which included various roles and careers at SHDC, 

followed by leading an activity for the students to organise their own Youth Music 
Page 97



and Arts Festival which highlighted the importance of community events and what is 

involved in organising them. 

• University Academy Holbeach – Attended their first ever careers fair with an SHDC 

careers stand, promoting the work of the Council and the careers within, brought in 

a PSPS Learning and Development colleague to represent as well as one of our 

Future Leaders colleagues. 

• University Academy Holbeach – Introduced them to the Global STEM challenge F1 

in schools as a way of engaging more students in STEM subjects which has resulted 

in them entering a team which will compete in the East Midlands Regional Finals in 

March 2023. Representatives from SHDC will be hosting the school’s F1 team on the 

18th January at the FEZ for them to make a Dragons Den style pitch to fund a 3D 

printer to help with their designs. 

• Cowley Academy – The Skills and Investment Officer is the voluntary Enterprise 

Adviser for this school and works with their careers lead on career strategy for all 

their students. This school was selected as it is on the boundary of South Holland 

and Boston and has students from both local authority areas in equal measure. 

• Spalding Grammar School – The Skills and Investment officer organised the school’s 

first Skills in Schools morning across the whole of year 10, and coordinated a variety 

of organisations to deliver skills workshops to promote skills and careers in their 

industry including Eurovia, Ark ICT, NHS Lincolnshire Talent Academy, Boston 

College Green Careers and delivered the SHDC Skills Workshop, Planning our Place, 

centred round planning, building control, economic growth, sustainability and 

environmental health. 

• Spalding Academy – Attended their careers fair with a SHDC careers stand, bringing 

in a PSPS recruiter to support. 

• Gosberton Academy and Wygate Park Academy – Presented F1 in schools to their 

Chief Education Officer and await news of whether they will be participating and 

entering a team which will increase the appetite for STEM subjects from their pupils. 

 

5.3 In the main, businesses are still carrying vacancies but seem to have adapted well to the 

situation which may indicate that the recent news from Bakkavor about potential 

redundancies at one of their Sutton Bridge factories will be softened by the number of jobs 

still available locally and indeed within other Bakkavor sites. Despite well documented 

concerns earlier in the year, in general, businesses seem to be coping with the reduction in 

labour that has occurred for a variety of reasons, there is no doubt that varying degrees of 

automation have been introduced into some processes, and some businesses have also 

made changes to shift patterns. As an example of this, at least two local fruit packers 

introduced a ‘Mums’ shift which allowed the flexibility for people to work during school 

hours which has opened up a previously untapped resource. Other businesses have also 

adopted a similar approach, especially in the run up to Christmas. 

 

5.4 The second post covid jobs fair was held on the 13th May at Springfields Exhibition Centre 

and was again well attended with 344 people through the door to speak to 27 employers 

who had taken space, offering approximately 800 vacancies, this figure did include 5 

Bakkavor sites in South Holland, Boston and Bourne. Employer feedback indicated 127 

people handed in CV’s, were invited to inductions and/or offered positions. 

 

 Strategic Engagement Page 98



6.0 An expression of interest was submitted to Government in late October following a call to 

nominate sites to be put forward as potential future investment zones, sites that have a key 

role to play in the expansion and growth of our nationally significant agri-food business 

cluster. The strategy in doing this is to further develop and enhance the agrifood sector 

through the growth and diversification of our business base, including attracting new 

foreign direct investment and supporting business growth in the areas of low carbon 

logistics, agri-tech, advanced manufacturing (including automation and robotics) and 

energy production. However, following a change in Government policy shortly after the EOI 

was submitted the emphasis changed to zones that have a direct relationship with 

Universities and knowledge transfer partnerships, as a result of this a letter has gone to the 

Chancellor from Senior figures within South Holland District Council, The University of 

Lincoln and the County Council urging Government to continue consideration of the South 

Lincs Food Enterprise Zone due to its close relationship with the University of Lincoln, the 

Institute of Technology, and the National Centre for Food Manufacturing, all of which are 

based on the FEZ and the knowledge transfer potential of the wider UK Food Valley which 

the FEZ is an integral part of. 

6.1 In late July, a contingent from Midlands Connect, part of the Midlands Engine with a remit 

for infrastructure planning across the East Midlands, took part in a two-day visit to the 

SELCP area. This event, jointly organised by colleagues from the County Council and the 

GLLEP, was designed to highlight the importance of our local economy and some of the 

issues it faces, particularly in respect of transport infrastructure. The team facilitated a 

business meeting at Springfields between the Midlands Connect team and a number of 

local businesses and the manager of the Fresh Produce Network representing her 

members, all of whom are reliant on the road network in the region. The Midlands Connect 

team, having earlier in the day visited the bridge at Sutton Bridge, engaged fully with the 

businesses and an open discussion took place to highlight the concerns that many local 

companies have on the lack of dual carriageway on the A16, A17 and A52, and gave local 

support for the project to dual the A47. Following the business meeting, the Midlands 

Connect team finished the day visiting the section of the Spalding Western Relief Road that 

is currently under construction. 

6.2 Also working with the Fresh Produce Network, a relationship has been developed with Lord 

Waverly, co-chair of an All-Party Parliamentary Group on the future of freight and Logistics. 

This group will be meeting within the next 12 months and it is intended that evidence will 

be presented to show the extent of our reliance on road transport to support our economy, 

and the need for the area to be identified as a key area for future investment in 

infrastructure. 

6.3 Through the development of a business case, an ‘in principal’ agreement has been secured 

from National Grid (the new name for Western Power) to secure major investment in 

power infrastructure to unlock planned housing and employment growth in Holbeach and 

Long Sutton in the form of a second primary substation. It is through officers intervention 

that it has been possible to achieve this outcome, it would not have happened had lobbying 

not taken place and made a strong case for the investment. The team are also involved in a 

wider piece of work, looking at energy infrastructure shortages across the area and wider 

Greater Lincolnshire, to identify other areas where there is a need to lobby for and secure 

investment in order to deliver growth.   

   Page 99



Grants4growth 

7.0 Since the last report, Grants4growth has continued to perform well against targets and 

budget. In the 9 months from April to the end of December 2022, £499,800 worth of grants 

were awarded to 41 businesses, creating 37.5 jobs and injecting £606,589 worth of private 

sector investment into the Lincolnshire economy. 

 The final grant offers were awarded in December 2022 and the programme has now fully 

allocated all the £3,849,764 ERDF funding available. The programme will reach practical and 

financial completion on 30th June 2023 and all grants must be claimed by SME’s by the end 

of March 2023. The last 6 months of the project will concentrate on liaising with SME’s to 

submit their final claims and minimise grant withdrawals and underspend. The team will 

continue with the programme evaluation and completion of the business impact 

assessment as well as ensuring that DLUHC programme requirements are met. 

7.1 The programme has recently been subject to a Government 127 audit which has just 

successfully concluded. In summing up, the Government Internal Audit Agency noted that: 

• The project meets the relevant selection criteria and objectives of the programme 

• EU and National rules, including Procurement, Publicity and State Aid requirements have 

been met 

• Expenditure declared corresponds to accounting records and supporting documentation 

held 

• Expenditure at all levels has been defrayed, including the payment of public contribution to 

the end beneficiary; and 

• Data regarding outputs, results and milestones, are reliable. 

7.2 As Grants4growth draws to a close, planning is taking place around a replacement scheme, 

with a view to utilising UKSPF funds to deliver the programme for the benefit of local 

businesses. 

 

8. CONCLUSION 
 
8.1 This report is for information only. 
 
9. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

9.1 N/A 
 
10. IMPLICATIONS 

10.1 None 

11 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

11.1 None 

12 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

12.1 None 

13 STAFFING 

13.1 None Page 100



14 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

14.1 None 

15 DATA PROTECTION 

15.1 None 

16 FINANCIAL 

16.1 None 
 
17 RISK MANAGEMENT 

17.1 None 

18 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

18.1 No consultation undertaken 

19 REPUTATION 

19.1 None 

20 CONTRACTS 

20.1 None 

21 CRIME AND DISORDER 

21.1 None 

22 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

22.1 None 

23 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

23.1 None 

24  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

24.1 None 

25. ACRONYMS 

25.1 GIAA Government Internal Audit Agency 

25.2 SELCP South East Lincs Council Partnership 

25.3 GLLEP Greater Lincolnshire Local Enterprise Partnership 

25.4 FEZ Food Enterprise Zone 

25.5 SME Small to medium size enterprise 

25.6  DIT Department for International Trade 

25.7 B2B Business to Business 

25.8 LCC Lincolnshire County Council 

25.9 DWP Department for Work and Pensions Page 101



25.10 G4G Grants4growth 

25.11 SHDC South Holland District Council 

25.12 STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, Maths 

 

APPENDICES 

None 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 

in the production of this report. 

 

 

CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Nigel Burch 

nburch@sholland.gov.uk 

Signed off by: Matthew Hogan, Assistant Director - Strategic 

Growth and Development 

Matthew.hogan@sholland.gov.uk 

Approved for publication: Councillor Nick Worth, Deputy Leader of the 

Council 

 

Page 102



 

 

 

 

REPORT TO: Performance Monitoring Panel 

DATE: 24 January 2023 

SUBJECT: 

 

PURPOSE:  

Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme 

 

To set out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring 

Panel 

KEY DECISION: N/A 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Communications 

REPORT OF: 

REPORT AUTHOR: 

Interim Assistant Director - Governance 

Andrea Tait – Democratic Services Officer 

WARD(S) AFFECTED: N/A 

EXEMPT REPORT? No 

 

SUMMARY 

This report sets out the Work Programme of the Performance Monitoring Panel and allows the 
Panel to monitor its progress and identify any additional items to be added to the Programme. 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That the Panel gives consideration to the content of this report and identifies any issues for 
discussion. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

To allow Members to feed into the Panel’s calendar of Work Programme items and the Work 
Programme on a regular basis, to ensure that they stay relevant and up to date. 

 

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED 

Do nothing. Not recommended. 

 Page 103

Agenda Item 13



1.  BACKGROUND 

1.1 This report records the issues for consideration that have been identified by the Panel for 
inclusion on its Work Programme. 

 

2. REPORT 

2.1 Appendix A sets out the dates of future Panel meetings along with proposed items for 
consideration. These items were either originally suggested by councillors or are being 
referred to the Panel from officers or the Cabinet. The appendix will be updated as new 
items are identified. 
 

2.2 Appendix B sets out the task groups that have been identified by the Panel. The table 
shows: 
 

The name of the task group 
• What it wants to achieve 
• Key dates 
• Membership of the task group 
• When the task group will be reporting back to the Panel 

 

3. CONCLUSION 
 
3.1 In presenting the information to the Panel, and by having the report as a standing item on 

the agenda, it will record the issues identified by the Panel and provide the opportunity for 
councillors to monitor the progress of its Work Programme. 

 
4. EXPECTED BENEFITS TO THE PARTNERSHIP 

4.1 The calendar of Work Programme items and the Work Programme will provide Panel 
Members with up to date and relevant information. Timelines for various calendar items 
and proposed task groups within the Work Programme are included within the appendices. 
The Panel can decide to scrutinise performance in areas of common strategic interest 
within the partnership, in addition to those that are relevant solely to SHDC. 

 
5. IMPLICATIONS 

5.1 SOUTH AND EAST LINCOLNSHIRE COUNCIL’S PARTNERSHIP 

5.1.1 None 

5.2 CORPORATE PRIORITIES 

5.2.1 In identifying issues for inclusion on the Work Programme, Members consider the 
suitability of the subject, taking into account considerations such as whether the issue is 
strategic and significant and whether it is likely to lead to effective outcomes. 

5.3 STAFFING 

5.3.1 None 

5.4 CONSTITUTIONAL AND LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.4.1 None 

Page 104



5.5 DATA PROTECTION 

5.5.1 None 

5.6 FINANCIAL 

5.6.1 None 
 
5.7 RISK MANAGEMENT 

5.7.1 None 

5.8 STAKEHOLDER / CONSULTATION / TIMESCALES 

5.8.1 None 

5.9 REPUTATION 

5.9.1 None 

5.10 CONTRACTS 

5.10.1 None 

5.11 CRIME AND DISORDER 

5.11.1 None 

5.12 EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY/ HUMAN RIGHTS/ SAFEGUARDING 

5.12.1 None 

5.13 HEALTH AND WELL BEING 

5.13.1 None  

5.14  CLIMATE CHANGE AND ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 

5.14.1 None 

6. ACRONYMS 

6.1 None 

 

APPENDICES 

Appendices are listed below and attached to the back of the report: - 

APPENDIX A Work Programme Calendar 2022/2023 

APPENDIX B Task Group Work Programme 2022/2023 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 were used 
in the production of this report.  

 Page 105



CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 

A report on this item has not been previously considered by a Council body 

 

REPORT APPROVAL  

Report author: Andrea Tait, Democratic Services Officer, 

atait@sholland.gov.uk  

Signed off by: Interim Assistant Director - Governance 

Approved for publication: Portfolio Holder for Corporate & Communications 

 

Page 106



1 
 

 APPENDIX A 
 

 
SHDC PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL   

 CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2022/2023 
 
 
 

 
DATE OF 
MEETING 

 

 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 

 
24 Jan 2023 

 

• Sustainable Products Policy briefing note Christian Allen 
 

• Crime and Disorder Dee Bedford  
Update report on community safety and how it is being 
delivered through the various tiers of Groups and Panels 
(including the East Lincs CSP and newly formed Lincolnshire 
CSP) – Update to be provided every six months by the 
Portfolio Holder for Community Development. Last discussed 
at meetings on 18/6/19, 11/9/19, a COVID-relevant update 
on 8/7/20, and 27/1/21, 19/10/21 (and Supt. Housley 
attended on to answer members’ questions) and 15/06/22   

 

• Economic Development and Inward Investment: six-monthly 
update Nigel Burch / Matthew Hogan / Michelle Sacks 

 

• Review of Implemented Planning Decisions Lucy Buttery 
 

 
26 Jan 2023 

 

• Joint PMP/PDP Budget Scrutiny 
 

 
14 Mar 2023 
 

 

• Sustainable Products Policy full report Christian Allen 
 

• Performance Report Q3 2022/23 Corey Gooch 
 

• Joint Scrutiny Public Transport Task Group Report Matthew 
Hogan 

 

• Swimming Pool and Leisure Facilities Task Group update 
Phil Perry 

 

• Sir Halley Stewart Playing Field Task Group Report Task 
Group representative 

 

To be 
scheduled for 
May/June 2023 
when schedule 
of meetings 
confirmed 

 

• South Holland Centre Task Group update Phil Perry 
six month update requested at 29/11/22 meeting 

 
 
 

 
 Page 107



2 
 

SHDC PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL 
ONGOING/FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 

FOR CONSIDERATION 2022/2023 
 

 
 

 
TO BE CONSIDERED AT EACH MEETING 

 

 
Corporate 
Enforcement 

 
From June 2022, with agreement of the Chairman, 
Corporate Enforcement reporting will form part of the 
Performance Report and attendance at meetings by the 
Community Safety & Enforcement Manager will be 
requested as required. Prior to this a six monthly update 
report came forward on how the Authority was addressing 
the various types of enforcement, following the Authority-
wide reorganisation. Updates received: 6/2/18, 31/7/18, 
30/1/19, 12/11/19, 27/1/21, 9/11/21 & 15/6/22.  
 

 
 

 
 

 
TO BE CONSIDERED ANNUALLY 

 

 
The Sir Halley 
Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group 

 
Final Report was presented to Council on 21/01/15.  Its first 
recommendation was: 
That the Council (i) advises the Charity Commission that 
the Task Group has considered the Commission’s 
Guidance on public benefit and is satisfied that the Council 
is compliant; (ii) provides a copy of this report to the 
Commission in order to outline the actions proposed by the 
Council; and (iii) invites  the Performance Monitoring Panel 
to appoint a Task Group on an annual (single meeting) 
basis for the specific purpose of ensuring that the Council 
remains compliant with Charity Commission Guidance. 
Updates received 24/01/19, 9/11/21 and 19/11/22. 
 

 
Review of 
Implemented 
Planning Decisions 

 
Tour undertaken 5/09/19; September 2020 tour cancelled 
as a result of ongoing Covid situation; and 27/10/22. 

 

 
 

 
 

 
FOR FUTURE CONSIDERATION 

 

 
South Holland 
Building 
Consultancy 

 
Following consideration of the Key Decision Plan, PMP and 
PDP have requested that a special Joint Meeting will be 
held to discuss the setting up of the South Holland Building 
Consultancy prior to it being considered by Cabinet (date to 
be confirmed). 
 

 
Commercialisation   

 
PMP to consider scrutiny as potential projects arise. 
 

 

Page 108



1 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

PERFORMANCE MONITORING PANEL – WORK PROGRAMME 2022/2023 
 
 

Name Of Task Group What the Task Group wants to 
achieve 

Date added to  
Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

 

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date of report 
to Panel 

South Holland Centre 
Task Group 

To review the historic operation of 
the SHC, examine the proposals, 
consider other activities, uses and 
operation that may be possible to 
help inform the task group in 
making recommendations to 
enable the Centre to serve the 
public and ensure a viable future. 
 

8/9/21 28/9/21 B Alcock 
(Chair) 
F Biggadike 
P Redgate 
S Walsh 
D Wilkinson 
A Woolf 
A Newton (Co-
Optee) 
 

The final report was 
presented to a Joint 
PMP/PDP meeting on 
4/05/22 and 
recommendations 
agreed at Cabinet on 
7/06/22.  
A Cabinet sub-group 
was appointed, and an 
Action Plan submitted 
to Cabinet on 15/11/22. 
The Action Plan came 
to PMP on 29/11/22. 
The SHC Task Group 
will reconvene on 
25/01/23.  

Sir Halley Stewart Playing 
Field Task Group 

Recommendation of the original 
Task Group to appoint a Task 
Group on an annual (single 
meeting) basis for the specific 
purpose of ensuring that the 
Council remained compliant with 
Charity Commission Guidance. 
 
Task Group to be reconvened 
February 2023 with new 
membership. To investigate 
opportunities regarding issues 
raised at the 29 November 2022 
meeting.  
 

15/06/16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30/11/22 

Date to be 
confirmed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TBC February 
2023 

GR Aley 
JR Astill 
GK Dark 
PC Foyster 
AM Newton 
 
 
 
CJTH Brewis 
PA Redgate 
SC Walsh 
DJ Wilkinson 
 

Meeting took place on 
24/01/19. 
PMP updated: 9/11/21 
and 29/11/22. 
 
 
 
 
14/03/23 

P
age 109



2 
 
 
Public Open Spaces Task 
Group / Effectiveness of 
management companies 
set up to undertake 
maintenance on 
residential estates 
throughout the district 
past, present and future 
(Task Groups combined 
June 2022) 

 

 
To be confirmed at first meeting. 

 
12/11/19 

 
TBC 

 
B Alcock 
J R Astill 
A C Beal 
CJTH Brewis 
PA Redgate 
 

 
TBC 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 110



3 
 

ONGOING CONCERNS 
 
 

Name Of Task Group What the Task Group wants to 
achieve 

Date added to  
Work 
Programme 

Date Work 
Commenced     

 

Membership of 
Task Group 

Proposed date of 
report to Panel 

Public Toilets Task Group To review public toilets in the 
district, looking at location, 
cleaning regimes, usage, reasons 
for closure and running costs. 
To use information gathered to 
ensure value for money, good 
service, and that the right money 
was spent in the right place. 

6 February 2018 23 April 2018 J R Astill 
CJTH Brewis 
T A Carter 
GK Dark 
(Chairman) 
PC Foyster 

30/01/19. 
To Cabinet 12/02/19.  
Response from 
Cabinet to PMP 
20/03/19. 
Update on progress 
PMP 11/11/19, 
29/01/20 and 
15/06/22. 
 

Swimming Pool and 
Leisure Centre Contract 
Task Group 

To review the Spalding swimming 
pool and leisure centre, 
specifically: 

• To consider performance, in 
relation to the contract, by the 
Authority and the contractor, 
particularly with reference to 
building maintenance and 
cleanliness, promotion of the 
facilities and reinvestment in 
the facilities; 

• To look at the Council’s 
performance in monitoring the 
leisure facilities; and 

To learn from the outcomes of this 
scrutiny, to inform future contracts 
and contract monitoring. 
 

1 December 
2015 

21 January 
2016 

J R Astill 
T A Carter 
G K Dark 
(Chairman) 
J L King 
A M Newton 

30/08/16. 
To Cabinet 8/11/16. 
Response and 
update on progress 
PMP 4/2/17, 16/5/17, 
7/11/17, 13/11/18, 
8/06/19 & 11/9/19. 
Next update was due 
10/11/20. PMP 
updated: 9/11/21, 
16/03/22, and 
15/06/22. 

Effectiveness of CCTV 
Task Group 

Purpose of Review – To establish 
the current situation with regard to 
CCTV and make 
recommendations to Cabinet on 
the way forward. 

6/11/12  21/11/12  B Alcock 
M Howard 
R M Rudkin 
D J Wilkinson 
(Chairman) 

Interim report to PMP 
29/01/13.  
Interim report to 
Cabinet 19/02/13. 

P
age 111



4 
 

Terms of Reference – To examine 
the effectiveness of the SHDC 
CCTV service and prospects for 
future provision. 
 
Panel received update on 8/04/14 
from the Portfolio Holder for 
Localism and Big Society on the 
position regarding CCTV.  
Performance information will be 
available on the new system in the 
future, once it becomes 
operational.  The Task Group will 
remain in operation to 
scrutinise performance and will 
start to do this once the 
information becomes available. 
 

 
 
   

Tracking of 
recommendations to 
PMP 26/03/13 
Updates to PMP: 
8/04/14, and six-
monthly thereafter.  

 

P
age 112


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Actions
	8 Key Decision Plan
	9 Sustainable Products Policy Briefing Note
	10 Crime and Disorder Report
	Appendix A  for Crime and Disorder Report
	Appendix B for Crime and Disorder Report
	Appendix C for Crime and Disorder Report
	Appendix D for Crime and Disorder Report
	Appendix E for Crime and Disorder Report

	11 Review of Implemented Planning Decisions
	AppendixASummaryofCommentsfromTourOctober2022

	12 Economic Development and Inward Investment Update
	13 Performance Monitoring Panel Work Programme
	Appendix A
	Appendix B




